NORTH CENTRAL FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

REGULAR BOARD MEETING PACKET
THURSDAY

JANUARY 27, 2022

5:30 P.M.

Public Documents



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
THURSDAY, JANUARY 27, 2022
5:30 P.M.
AGENDA

This public meeting is electronically broadcast and is not an interactive forum.
Phone #: (669) 900-6833
Meeting ID: 559 878 4530
Passcode: 4550

Anyone from the public wishing to address any of the agenda items, can do so in
person at 156850 W. Kearney Blvd. Kerman CA.

CALL TO ORDER
A) Roll Call

INVOCATION AND FLAG SALUTE
PUBLIC COMMENTS

CONSENT AGENDA
A) Consideration and Approval of Disbursements List for December 2021
B) Review and Acceptance of Monthly Financial Reports

1) District Fund Balances — All Funds

2) Budget Variance Report: YTD Expenses Compared to Budget

3) Revenue and Reimbursement Report

4) PG&E Reports

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A) Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of December 9, 2021.
B) Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of January 13, 2022.

DISTRICT AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2021

A) Action item - Consider and approve the District Audit as presented by Bill
Patterson with Sampson, Sampson and Patterson for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2021.

SECOND PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING THE CONTENT OF THE DRAFT

MAPS AND PROPOSED SEQUENCE OF ELECTIONS

A) Conduct the Public Hearing to invite public to provide input regarding the content
of the draft maps and proposed sequence of elections.

FIRE CHIEF REPORT
A) Fire Incident/Fire Prevention Reports for December
B) COVID-19 Fiscal Relief for Special Districts
C) American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA)
1



D) Station 59 Renovation Update

E) CDBG Grant Update

F) FPPC Fundraising Reporting Changes

G) 2021 Strike Team Reimbursement Update
H) 2021 SAFER Grant Application

[) 2021 AFG Grant Application

J) KUSD Workforce Grant Opportunity

PUBLIC COMMENT: (Before Closed Session) For any member of the public that

would like to make a comment on the Closed Session item(s)

9. CLOSED SESSION

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Government Code section

54957.6

Agency designated representatives: Chief Tim Henry and outside negotiator Che

Johnson Liebert Cassidy Whitmore
Employee organization: North Central Professional Firefighters Association

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of Subdivision (d) of

Section 54956.9: Number of cases: 2

10. AUTOMATIC/MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT PROPOSAL WITH FIG GARDEN FIRE

PROTECTION DISTRICT

A) Action item — Consider and approve the proposed Automatic/Mutual Aid

Agreement between the District and Fig Garden Fire Protection District.
11. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS/REPORTS

12. ANNOUNCEMENTS
A) Regular Board Meeting: Thursday, February 24, 2022, at 5:30 p.m.

13. ADJOURNMENT

PUBLIC COMMENTS AND INQUIRIES

At a Board meeting, those who wish to be heard on malters on the agenda should indicate their desire to speak when the item
is ready for discussion. If, at the meeting, you wish to discuss an item, which is not on the agenda, you may indicate your desire
to do so under "Public Comments”. In order to allow time for all public comments and inquiries, the time for individual comments
may, at the discretion of the Chairman of the Board, be limited to five minutes. If you wish to request time on an upcoming Board
Agenda to present a particular item or matter to the Board, you may contact the District by 5:00 p.m. seven business days prior
to the scheduled Board meeting to so request. If the matter is within the Board's jurisdiction, and the Board has not taken action
or considered the item at a recent meeting, the District may place the item on the agenda. When addressing the Board, you are
requested to come forward to the speaker’'s podium, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to participate at this meeting, please
contact the District at 559-275-5531. Notification provided a minimum of 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to
make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to
the physically disabled.

2



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
DISBURSEMENT JOURNAL
DECEMBER 1, 2021 - DECEMBER 31, 2021

January 5, 2022

TOTAL

CK# VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT

NCPFA Union dues 12/03/21 3,000.00

QuickBooks Payroll Employee Payroll 12/14/21 130,159.08
7225 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 98.63
7226 Aramark Linen service 12/15/21 172.64
7227 ARBA Group life insurance 12/15/21 129.56
7228 AT&T Phone & long distance service 12/15/21 49.20
7229 Baker Manock & Jensen Legal services 12/15/21 3,375.42
7230 Barrios Enterprise Portable toilet services 12/15/21 165.00
7231 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 375.00
7232 Cal State Tool Apparatus smoke test 12/15/21 405.00
7233 Employee Payroll Liabilities Child support 12/15/21 435.00
7234 Employee Payroll Liabilities Child support 12/15/21 100.50
7235 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 293.54
7236 City of Fresno Utilities 12/15/21 95.37
7237 City of Kerman Utilities 12/15/21 595.67
7238 Clyde Lansing Consultant services 12/15/21 2,000.00
7239 Comcast Business Internet and phone services 12/15/21 1,606.25
7240 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 245,84
7241 CSDA Member Services Membership dues 12/15/21 8,195.00
7242 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 363.00
7243 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance & training 12/15/21 379.93
7244 Department of Justice Live scan services 12/15/21 441.00
7245 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 189.16
7246 ECMS Turnout repairs 12/15/21 334.61
7247 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 375.00
7248 Energy Concepts Inc. Repair solar inverter issues 12/15/21 235.00
7249 Fire Apparatus Solutions Apparatus repairs 12/15/21 6,827.66
7250 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 324.77
7251  Got Window? Cleaned windows at station 55 12/15/21 558.00
7252 H&J Chevrolet Vehicle maintence 12/15/21 148.38
7253 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 235.31
7254 Employee Reimbursement Training 12/15/21 225.00
7255 John Hancock USA 457 plan contributions 12/15/21 3,931.51
7256 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance and Boots 12/15/21 560.80
7257 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 155.97
7258 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 394.63
7259 Employee Reimbursement Boots 12/15/21 285.00
7260 Board Member Reimbursement Board member health insurance 12/15/21 799.00
7261 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 292.66
7262 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 375.00



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

DISBURSEMENT JOURNAL

DECEMBER 1, 2021 - DECEMBER 31, 2021

January 5, 2022

TOTAL

CK# VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT
7263 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 304.21
7264 Loperena Antenna Sites Owens mountain antenna site lease 12/15/21 1,853.00
7265 Mac's Equipment Parts for apparatus 12/15/21 464.12
7266 Board Member Reimbursement Board member health insurance 12/15/21 901.00
7267 Mid Valley Disposal Utilities 12/15/21 325.36
7268 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 375.00
7269 Office Depot Office supplies, training 12/15/21 774.22
7270  Orkin Pest control 12/15/21 255.00
7271 Overhead Door, Inc Repair overhead door 12/15/21 75.00
7272 PARS 457 & pension admin fees 12/15/21 2,952.25
7273 PG&E Utilities 12/15/21 1,024.38
7274 Ray Morgan Copier maintenance 12/15/21 68.33
7275 Real-Time Computer maintenance 12/15/21 1,030.50
7276 Employee Reimbursement Flex plan reimbursement & uniform allowance 12/15/21 815.45
7277 Robert V Jensen Bulk fuel 12/15/21 3,654.55
7278 Rolinda Farm Supply Station supplies 12/15/21 81.17
7279 Board Member Reimbursement Board member health insurance 12/15/21 799.00
7280 San Joaquin Valley Air Control Permit fees 12/15/21 42.00
7281 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 232.90
7282 Sebastian Phone service 12/15/21 172.45
7283 Sierra HR Partners, Inc HR consultant services 12/15/21 125.00
7284 Slumberger Lumber Station maintenance 12/15/21 1,184.01
7285 Sparkletts Water delivery service 12/15/21 746.78
7286 Employee Reimbursement Uniform allowance 12/15/21 163.62
7287 Streamline Website hosting 12/15/21 400.00
7288 Employee Health Insurance Reimbursement 12/15/21 1,350.00
7289 U.S. Bank PARS Pension plan contributions 12/15/21 42,160.48
7290 United Health Care Ins. Prior Board Member health insurance 12/15/21 403.50
7291 Valley Farm Supply Apparatus maintanance, station supplies, 12/15/21 199.38
7292 ASI| Admininistrative Solution Dental/Vison plan funding 12/20/21 2,920.00
7293 FDAC Empolyment Benefits Group health insurance premiums 12/20/21 57,460.96
7294  Fresno County Treasurer Employees EMS Recertification 12/20/21 1,5621.00

Payroll Board Payrol! 12/29/21 336.10

Payroll Employee Payroll 01/12/00 121,300.83
7295 Aramark Linen service 12/30/21 216.20
7296 Biola CSD Utilites 12/30/21 219.05
7297 Cal Fire Training 12/30/21 1,400.00
7298 Employee Reimbursement Boots 12/30/21 285.00
7299 Employee Payroll Liabilities Child support 12/30/21 435.00
7300 Employee Payroll Liabilities Child support 12/30/21 100.50



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

DISBURSEMENT JOURNAL

DECEMBER 1, 2021 - DECEMBER 31, 2021

January 5, 2022

TOTAL
CK# VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT
7301 CCP Industries Inc. Station supplies 12/30/21 100.36
7302 Consolidated Services Repair A/C server rm, Ice machine, 4-HVAC 12/30/21 1,512.50
7303 CSG Consultants Plan review services 12/30/21 345.00
7304 Employee Reimbursement Boots 12/30/21 285.00
7305 Faustino Lopez Gardener - station 59 12/30/21 300.00
7306 Employee Reimbursement Flex plan reimbursement 12/30/21 800.00
7307 John Hancock USA 457 contributions 12/30/21 3,931.51
7308 Jorgensen Company Inc. Fire extinghishers serviced 12/30/21 179.68
7309 Employee Reimbursement Boots 12/30/21 285.00
7310 L.N. Curtis Apparatus maintanance 12/30/21 2,393.47
7311 Liebert, Cassidy, Whitmore Legal services 12/30/21 2,356.00
7312  Office Depot Office supplies 12/30/21 64.13
7313  Orkin Pest control 12/30/21 35.00
7314 PG&E Utilities 12/30/21 1,078.92
7315 Ray Morgan Copier maintenance 12/30/21 129.58
7316 Robert V Jensen Bulk fuel 12/30/21 1,208.33
7317 Sebastian Phone services 12/30/21 172.45
7318 Standard Insurance Company Life & LTD Insurance 12/30/21 1,711.00
7319 Streamline Website hosting 12/30/21 400.00
7320 Employee Reimbursement Boots & Uniform allowance 12/30/21 618.05
Station & office supplies, food, training, bank
membership dues

7322 U.S Bank Pars Pension plan contributions 12/30/21 42,209.92
7323 US Bank Voyager Fleet Card Voyager card fuel purchases 12/30/21 1,058.07
7324 Verizon Toughbooks data plan 12/30/21 760.20
7325 Verizon Wireless Cell phones - operations 12/30/21 280.48
7326 Verizon Wireless office Cell phones - admin 12/30/21 521.92
7327 County of Fresno Dispatch for October & November 12/30/21 29,752.00
7328 Co. of Fresno Auditor/Controller December 2021 - POB 12/30/21 30,305.24

Total $ 548,175.57

Board action: To approve disbursements from West America general account as
presented for the total amount of $ 548,175.57



WV 9€:8 220c/¥e/L

65°689'966°6 6g°Zv9'0ZL S6°00SvYE 6S'SEL'VE 8G'GEQL6LL £6°L9°.6C Z6'OLE'SLL'E  61'98E°LE6'Y 120Z/1€/Z) 3dueeg Buipul
6.°210'eSY'S 6g°Zro‘ozL S6°00S'Y¥E 6S'SEL'VE  LT'€B0'SS9 66'69Z°0SC Z60L6'SLL'S 89°698'€€6 1202/10/2) d2uejeg Bog
ovviv oevLy ozviy olviy ooviy 00002 00001 # SSV10 ann4d
SANNd 11V ann4
40 Tviol anNn4d JAVIT anNn4d
>Ozvavwv_ﬁ_.ZOo IANISTY MOIS SK3 oNIgINg 1N3INdIND3 B\4-ELED) S3ONVIVE HSVD

1202 ‘L€ ¥39dIN303a
S3ONVIVE HSVO aNN4 1o11sId
10141SIad NOILOTLO¥d FId TVHINID HLMON




%06 = obesaae - Jeak [eaSl) JO Yjuow yjg

%L 0§ €2°087'90.°L %6"6¥ 11°292°20L°) 80'VlE'TLZ  69°88C°06¥°L £HZ'60V'C s|ejo

%0°8¢ 18°509 L %0°Z9 €Lv6E2L 00'0 eLyeezL 00002 aoueudjuiel R S)SeW YEIS
%09 6¥°2€0°8Y %0"9€ 1S 29602 8L°LS £€£'916°9Z 000'G. asoH 'g Juawdinb3 ‘sjoo] snjeseddy
%S 6.1 9¢°€.8°61 %S°02 ¥9'9Z1L'S (eg'ves) Ly'199°S 000'sC uonuaAald aily
%8 LS 80°888°C %2 TV Z6°LLL'T 29°0LL 0£°100°C 000°S poo
%80V 82°09L8 %265 zL6€8°'LL S¥'8SPL Lz'18g'olL 00002 soliddng 22010
%E 28 86°595V01 %L Ll 20'vev'ee §5'€56'C Lv'08Y'6lL 000°L2} Bujures)
%6°S. 6€°08.°CC %L ¥ 19'6L2°L 00'0 L9°6L2'L 000°0¢ sosuadx3 joned
%0°€S 85°265°0L %0 Lt 2y L0v'6 000258 2y’ 188 00002 suonduosqns @ sang diysiaquay
%¥'2e 88°671°6C %9°LL ZL'0S8°'00L  PESKSLL 8.v0£'68 000°0€1 S9DIAI9G [eUOISSB)0Id
%9 0% 96'S.€£°92 %% 65 ¥0'¥29°'8¢ sl8ge'e 62'682'SE 00059 SN
%L'SY 0S°ZLL LY %E"¥S 0S°228'8¥ $6°026'S $5°906°ZY 000°06 [eng
% LY 16°2.8'81 %8°2S 60°2ZL°1LT €889l oz'8vv'6l 000°0¥ soljddng uonelg
%¥'2S 60°2.€'2S %9 LY 16°229°LY 65°€6.'9 zeves'ov 000°001 aoueusjulely Ayjioe
%9°SS 6Leve'ee % ¥ 18°159°92 LLEZLT 0L'825'vC 00009 juawdinb3 9210 ¢ s1eIndwon
%¥'98 SP'€95'VE %9°€lL S5'9EP'S 81°209 1€°628'Y 000‘0V aoueusjulely Juswdinbg uonerg
%% 9E €2°999'¥S %9°€9 LL°€EE'S 6€°520°LL 8€°80¢'v8 000°0S1 aoueusjuley sneseddy
%8 LY 1Z°€00‘sy %2'2S €1'966'0¥ ¥£'608°S 6€°28L° LY 00006 suonesjunwwo)
%L'v8 zT'8zL'Y8 %E"S L 8L122'GL vevo'e ve6zz'cl 000001 sjnown)
%€ 00°099°¢ %896 00°0vE‘LLL 000 00°0vE‘LLL  000°SLL 2oueinsu| Ajiqer g ony ‘Auadoid
%00 o0 %0001 5091 6% 000 ¥ 091 '6¥ L9L'6v swAed Buoueuly snjeseddy
%10 81'28160Z %66V 2589680 000 25'895'80C  LSL'LLY Buroueuly yuswAhed yy304
%005 95°1€8'181 %0°0S vy 1e8'18l  $Z'S0E0€ 02'925°LSL  £99¢9¢ spuog uoiebiqQ uoisuag
%99 00°0Z8‘SEl %¥'SE 00°08S'v.L 00°2S.'6¢ 00'829°vY 0oz‘oLe sa0lAl9g Ydjedsiq - ousalg Jo funo)
%0°"0S 00'¥€2T'ceS %00 00VEZ'cES  GE'T.8'88 S9'LOE'vPP  89¥'990°L JuswWwaaiby 92IAISS OJ)9 ousald Jo A)D

Buiulewsy  Bulujeway pasn L2/0g/LL nIyy 1ebpng g
19Bpng 40 % 196png 19Bpng 40 % |ejol AlA LZ-28Qq AAOY WNNMM _.w_wMA_UuN_ aoueuajure|y pue saljddng ‘sasialog

€c0c INNr - LZoe AInr
Ivnldv - Ol - 139ang
JOVNINILNIVIN ANV S3ITddNS ‘SAJIAYIS
101381810 NOILD310¥d FdId TVHINID HLYON




%488 18'066°zeE’L %ELL €1'65£'691 000 €1°65€691 oLe‘zey'L sainjipuadx3 pun [ejo}

%6°LY 8€°26.Lv A 29'.02°‘S 000 29°202'‘S 000°0L Buip|ing - sainjipuadx3 snoaue|jaosi
%29 00°299°L %8°€6 oo'eee‘se 000 00'cee'se 000°22 8S '8 6§ suoljelsg - sisurejuo) abelolg
%882 ¥0'v88°‘C %2’ LL 96°'GLLL 000 96'SLL‘L 000°0L leyide) - sainjipuadx3 snoaue||aosIp
%0°€L 29'506'c %0°28 8€'¥60°92 00°0 8€'¥60°9Z 000°0€ 86 '? 95 SUONE)S 10} SI0}OEIXT
%6°6€ 2.'006°6¢ %109 82766009 000 82°660°09 000°001L sjo9fo.d yuswanoidw) |eyde)

%0°001 00'000°00S %00 00°0 000 000 000°00S auibuz auig )|y adA L
%6°56 19'v0€°€29 %LV 6€'669°92 000 6£'669°9Z 000°059 Aeg ddy 65 uonels jo uoneaousy

%0001 oooLeoe %00 00°0 00°0 000 oLe‘os 65 uonejs - 61y penbg

%0°001L 00°000°S9 %00 00°0 00°0 000 000°G9 S[OIYaA 13)IOM\ DDUBUBJUIBY

%0°001 00°000°SZ %0°0 000 000 000 00062 Jajsuel] juswdinb3z sjamo] Ayjjinbuesy
%6°G 05'98L°L %Ll 'v6 0s'cl8‘sl 000 0s°cL8‘el 00002 apeuBdn oipey yojedsiqg

%0001 00'000°sZ %00 000 000 000 000°sZ juswajeqy paam

y9bpng Jad sainjipuadx3g pung

%9°LS 92'90.'5Le‘e O 14 ¥2'960°8L0°C  LE£°SP0°06¥ 1€°€10'825‘T  €9.'ceT'9 g90d pue sjjauag ‘sabep |ejo

%9°LS Ly'809°€LL’E %V 8y 65'59€°286'C  SS°9ZS V8V p0'6€8°26V'C ¥.6°GSL°9 sjyauag pue sabep ssko|dwy
%¥°0S Zy'569°S %96V 86°66S°S 8€£°796 02°2£9Y S62°LL sjjouag asnodg Buiniaing
%9°0S 00'0v.LC %V 6V 00'6.9°C 059y 05'2ez'e 6L¥'S Sjljauag JoquIB|\ pieog Jolud
%L°GS ey'z99°ce %6 vV 1SC2Iv'Le v6° 201V €9'v0€'ceC G20°L9 sjijauag pue sabep pieog Juaing

Bulurewsy  Bujurewsy pasn \ziognnay _tooPnd .
1o6png oy, jeBpng  jebpngoc, oL ALA veoea Ananoy wwmm _mwwmﬁ_vm HPSSSSIUSIEg SSNC

€20¢ IANNr - LZoz Anr

VNLJV - Ol - 139dnd

STANLIANIdX3 ANN4 ANV 90d ‘SLI43INIF ‘'STOVM
1J141SI3 NOILOT10¥d 3dI4 TVHLINID HLYON




8¢°125°886 £9°69Z°'182 S.'LSZ'.0€ S|ejo] juawasinquiiay
00°LEZ'PEE 00°650°89 00221992 00'0L9°2€8 JueID Y34vs
$5°'516'8P2 €9°012'€LZ  L6Y0L'SE 2T 1SL°TSY JuswiasInquilay Wea) ayLIs
yevic's 00'0 y8vLE'S "quitay A)1 N @ses uonels adue|NqUy
i LZ/0E/L L nay}
s|ejol QlA LZ-22a p swa} a|qesinquioy
%05 €9°CEE'LLE'S %0S LL'v1E'88€'S  LLPEL'ISL'S 9P'6E£9°0EZ 80.'669°0L  SIBI0] anudAay
%2991~ (26°€6.LVL) %2Z9.1L 26°€6Z°6. G6°'199°G/ 16°1€9°E 005‘Yy aWwoouj SNOdUR|I3ISIN
%irb G9'8EE'S %9G G€199°9 00°0 G2 1999 00021 s|ied auQ Ajuoud 10} JuswasINquIay
%91- (s8'525'Y) %911 68'625°2¢ 000 G8'GZS'ZE 00082 Bulures) ys| 8691109 A ousaiy
%0. 90°265°LL %0€ ¥6°L0V'L v6°L0¥°L 00°0 000°'sZ JUBWISSBSSY JuaWwaleqy pasiy
%06 0091551 %06 00°88Z°SL 00°8b5°‘ 00°0¥.2°CL ¥08‘0¢ jejuay Jamo|
%8G 00°EYL 0L %Zh 00'S¥Z’L 00°0 00°SPZ‘L 88¢°LL 9seaT uolje)g adsuenquy
%G9~ (8Z°112°22) %G91L 8Z'LLLLS 00°089°0L 8Z°160°L¥ 000°sE $)}299Y9) ue|d Pue S}uwIdd ‘sady
%S Ly ove‘zy %9 6G°E€SL LS 00°0 65°€G1L L€ 000°08 (100d yusunsaauj fiunon) jsaiayu)
%S 9.'886°L2E‘S %6V YT L20'SPL'S  Z89EV'L90'S ZP 065°E8 910'29t°01 saxe] Auadoid
Y% Bututewisy PanI9o5d [ej0l QLA 1Z-28Q L NNQMM uﬂwou anuaAay
L 6 B : )
196png 1abpng jo v, Ajanoy Jes) 2981

€20Z 3ANNC - L2og ATNr
IvNLIV - Ol - 139ang

SINIWISUYNGWITY ANV INNIATY

100111810 NOILD310¥d 3dI4 TVHLNID HLYON




PG&E Comparison
2020 to 2021
LOCATION Nov-20 Nov-21 Difference

15850 W. Kearney:
Acc# 7835118035 (Elect) - Kwh $ 20.87 $ 2464 % 3.77
Acc# 7835118040 (Gas) - Therms 249.79 448.91 199.12

MONTHLY TOTALS $ 27066 $ 473.55 202.89
806 S. Garfield:
Acc# 7835118045 (Elect) - Kwh 480 $ 953 § 473
Acci# 7835118050 (Gas) - Therms 99.79 7294 § (26.85)

MONTHLY TOTALS §$ 104.59 82.47 § (22.12)
4555 N. Biola:
Acc# 2283032025 (Elect) - Kwh (7.10) § 953 $ 16.63
Acc# 2283032030 (Gas) - Therms 65.00 $ 62.62 $ (2.38)

MONTHLY TOTALS § 5790 $ 7215 § 14.25
7285 W. Shields:
Acc# 6632517005 (Elect) - Kwh $ 1,093.40 $ 1,069.73 §$ (23.67)
Acc# 7835118025 (Shop) - Kwh $ 15213 § 146.91 § (5.22)
Acc# 7835118020 (yrd lite) - Kwh $ 1178 $ 1181 § 0.03
Acc# 7835118030 (Gas) - Therms $ 22256 $ 29510 $ 72.54

MONTHLY TOTALS $ 1,479.87 $ 1,623.55 § 43.68
1709 W. Bullard:
Acc# 2283033680 (Elect) - Kwh $ 3135 § 5248 § 21.13
Acc# 2283032877 (Gas) - Therms $ 25.40 785 § (17.55)

MONTHLY TOTALS §$ 56.75 § 60.33 § 3.58

TOTALS BY MONTH $ 1,969.77 $ 221205 $ 242.28




PG&E Comparison
2020 to 2021
LOCATION Nov-20 Nov-21 Difference
15850 W. Kearney:
Acc# 7835118035 (Elect) - Kwh 4,876 6,494 1,618
Acc# 7835118040 (Gas) - Therms 166 243 77
806 S. Garfield:
Acc# 7835118045 (Elect) - Kwh 1,133 1,337 204
Acc# 7835118050 (Gas) - Therms 63 34 (29)
4555 N. Biola:
Acc# 2283032025 (Elect) - Kwh 2,914 3,224
Acc# 2283032030 (Gas) - Therms 37 28 (9)
7285 W. Shields:
Acc# 6632517005 (Elect) - Kwh 4,351 4,286 (65)
Acc# 7835118025 (Shop) - Kwh 586 550 (36)
Acci# 7835118020 (yrd lite) - Kwh 9 10 1
Total Kwh current month 4,946 4,846 (100)
Acc# 7835118030 (Gas) - Therms 150 156 6
1709 W. Bullard:
Acc# 2283033680 (Elect) - Kwh 52 130 78
Acc# 2283032877 (Gas) - Therms 13 0 (13)




PG&E Comparison

2020 to 2021
LOCATION Dec-20 Dec-21 Difference
15850 W. Kearney:
Acc# 7835118035 (Elect) - Kwh $ 2382 $ 2547 § 1.65
Acct# 7835118040 (Gas) - Therms $ 1,082.06 1,809.80 $ 727.74
MONTHLY TOTALS $ 1,105.88 183527 § 729.39
806 S. Garfield:
Acct# 7835118045 (Elect) - Kwh $ 9.86 1051 §$ 0.65
Acc# 7835118050 (Gas) - Therms 184.69 208.97 § 24.28
MONTHLY TOTALS $ 194.55 219.48 § 24.93
4555 N. Biola:
Acci# 2283032025 (Elect) - Kwh 10.18 - (10.18)
Acc# 2283032030 (Gas) - Therms 166.33 $ 231.02 64.69
MONTHLY TOTALS $ 176.51 231.02 54.51
7285 W. Shields:
Acc# 6632517005 (Elect) - Kwh $ 940.57 $ 1,078.92 § 138.35
Acc# 7835118025 (Shop) - Kwh $ 11563 $ 17599 § 60.36
Acc# 7835118020 (yrd lite) - Kwh $ 1178 § 1182 $ 0.04
Acc# 7835118030 (Gas) - Therms $ 453.10 § 45851 § 5.41
MONTHLY TOTALS § 1,521.08 $ 172524 % 204.16
1709 W. Bullard:
Acc# 2283033680 (Elect) - Kwh $ 36.32 4831 $ 11.99
Acc# 2283032877 (Gas) - Therms 5 33.99 8.66 (25.33)
MONTHLY TOTALS $ 70.31 56.97 (13.34)
TOTALS BY MONTH $ 3,068.33 § 4,067.98 $ 999.65




PG&E Comparison
2020 to 2021
LOCATION Dec-20 Dec-21 Difference
15850 W. Kearney:
Acc# 7835118035 (Elect) - Kwh 2,713 7,238 4,525
Acc# 7835118040 (Gas) - Therms 739 981 242
806 S. Garfield:
Acc# 7835118045 (Elect) - Kwh 1,047 1,584 537
Acc# 7835118050 (Gas) - Therms 119 116 (3)
4555 N. Biola:
Acc# 2283032025 (Elect) - Kwh 2,389 0 (2,389)
Acc# 2283032030 (Gas) - Therms 105 118 13
7285 W. Shields:
Acc# 6632517005 (Elect) - Kwh 3,886 4,317 431
Acc# 7835118025 (Shop) - Kwh 439 672 233
Acc# 7835118020 (yrd lite) - Kwh 10 9 (1)
Total Kwh current month 4,335 4,998 663
Acc# 7835118030 (Gas) - Therms 306 244 (62)
1709 W. Bullard:
Acc# 2283033680 (Elect) - Kwh 63 115 52
Acc# 2283032877 (Gas) - Therms 18 0 (18)




NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 9, 2021
4:00 P.M.
MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER
District Board Chair Mr. Ken Abrahamian called the meeting to order at 4:05 p.m.

Roll Call
Board Members Present: Mr. Michael Golden, Mr. Michael Foglio, Mr. Rusty
Nonini, Ms. Amanda Souza and Mr. Ken Abrahamian.

Also present were Fire Chief Tim Henry, Ken Price, Mr. Che Johnson and Mr. Joe
Barcelos.

INVOCATION AND FLAG SALUTE
The invocation was led by Pastor Bortner and the flag salute was led by Chief Henry.

At this time in the meeting, the District Board moved into Closed Session (Agenda
item number 11). Mr. Abrahamian stated the District Board will be moving into
closed session and asked if any members of the public would like to make a
comment on the Closed Session items. There were no comments.

The District Board moved back into open session at 5:15 pm. There was no action
to report from closed session.

REORGANIZATION OF BOARD OFFICERS

A) Election of Board Chair, Board Vice-Chair and Board Secretary.
Mr. Abrahamian opened the floor for nominations for the District Board Chair
position. Ms. Souza nominated Mr. Abrahamian and Mr. Nonini seconded this
nomination. There were no other nominations so a vote was taken to elect Mr.
Abrahamian for Board Chair

Motion: To approve the nomination and elect Mr. Ken Abrahamian for Board
Chair.

Moved by: Mr. Nonini, second by Mr. Golden.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote:
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

Mr. Abrahamian opened the floor for nominations for District Board Vice-Chair
and Board Secretary. Ms. Souza nominated Mr. Nonini for Board Vice-Chair and

North Central Fire Protection District Board of Directors
Regular Board Meeting Minutes — December 9, 2021
Page 1 of 5



Mr. Foglio seconded this nomination. Mr. Foglio nominated Ms. Souza for Board
Secretary and Mr. Nonini seconded this nomination. There were no other
nominations so a vote was taken to elect Mr. Nonini for Board Vice-Chair and
Ms. Souza for Board Secretary.

Motion: To approve the nominations and elect Mr. Rusty Nonini for Board Vice-
Chair and Ms. Souza for Board Secretary.

Moved by: Mr. Foglio, second by Mr. Nonini.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mrs. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote:
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
There were no public comments.

5. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Consideration and Approval of Disbursements List for November 2021
B. Review and Acceptance of Monthly Financial Reports
1) District Fund Balances — All Funds
2) Budget Variance Report: YTD Expenses Compared to Budget
3) Revenue and Reimbursement Report

Mr. Abrahamian asked the District Board and members of the public if there were
any items on the Consent Agenda they would like to pull from the agenda for
discussion or questions.

There were no questions so Mr. Abrahamian called for a motion to approve the
Consent Agenda.

Motion: To approve the Consent Agenda as presented.
Moved by: Mr. Golden, second by Mr. Nonini.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote:
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A) Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of November 18, 2021.
There were no questions or comments.

Motion: To approve the minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of November 18,
2021 as presented.

Moved by: Mr. Foglio, second by Mr. Golden.

North Central Fire Protection District Board of Directors
Regular Board Meeting Minutes — December 9, 2021
Page 2 of 5



Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote:
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

FIRE CHIEF REPORT

A) Fire Incident/Fire Prevention Reports for November 2021
Chief Henry stated the incident and investigation reports for this month show little
change to the reports for this same time last year. There were no questions.

B) UPDATE ON HIRING PROCESS
Chief Henry stated he wanted to give the district board an update on the hiring
progress for the SAFER grant. The grant period begins in the last few days in
February so we have completed the firefighter testing process, we have started
backgrounds on more than a dozen potential candidates we intend to hire for the
SAFER grant in the first week of March to start their fire academy training.

C) STATION 59 RENOVATION STATUS
Chief Henry stated the plans for the Station 59 renovation were submitted to the
County and we did get back some identified corrections to the plans based on
ADA requirements. The contractor is now working with the sub-contractors to
figure out what the costs are for the additional ADA requirements.

Chief Henry stated the corrected plans should be resubmitted to the County
today then the development department should be able to finish up the plan
review and approve them. We are still within the time window we set but come
January it will become critical if we do not get the plans back and start
construction so we can meet our opening deadline of July 1, 2022.

SECOND PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING THE COMPOSITION AND

BOUNDARIES OF THE DISTRICT’S ELECTION DISTRICTS

A) Conduct Public Hearing to invite public to provide input regarding the
composition and boundaries of the districts.
Mr. Abrahamian opened the public hearing at 5:28 p.m. for comments from the
members of the public. There were no comments from members of the public
so Mr. Abrahamian closed the public hearing at 5:29 p.m.

CDBG AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF FRESNO

A) Consideration and approval of the agreement with the County of Fresno to
receive CDBG Grant funds for the purchase of a new Type Ill Fire Engine
for District Station 57 in Biola.
Mr. Barcelos stated the District applied for CDBG grant funding in August of 2020
to purchase a new Type llI Fire Engine for the District’s Biola Station. The District
herd from the County’s Community Development Department a few months ago
that the District was chose second on the list of agencies to receive CDBG
funding. The next step in the process is to enter into an agreement with the
County of Fresno

North Central Fire Protection District Board of Directors
Regular Board Meeting Minutes — December 9, 2021
Page 3 of 5



The estimated cost of the purchase of the Type lll Fire Engine is $483,140. The
funding from the CDBG grant will cover 50 percent of the total costs, which is
$241,570 and the District will pick up the remaining cost.

After the agreement is approved at tonight's District Board meeting it will go
before the County Board of Supervisors for approval at their January 18, 2022
Supervisor's meeting.

Mr. Abrahamian called for a motion and asked if there was any discussion or
questions. There were no questions or discussion.

Motion: To approve the agreement with the County of Fresno for CDBG grant
funding for the purchase of a new Type Il Fire Engine for the District's Biola
station.

Moved by: Mr. Nonini, second by Mr. Golden.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote:
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

10. BOARD MEETING DATES - CALENDAR YEAR 2022
A) Action item — Consider and approve board meeting dates for the 2022
calendar year.
Mr. Abrahamian called the District Board’s attention to the list of dates and times
for the regular district board meetings scheduled for the 2022 calendar year. He
asked if anyone had a conflict with any of the dates. There were none so he
called for a motion.

Motion: To approve the dates and times scheduled for the 2022 regular District
Board meetings.

Moved by: Mr. Foglio, second by Mr. Abrahamian.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote:
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

Both closed sessions were held earlier in the meeting.

11. CLOSED SESSION
A) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS — Government Code section
54957.6
Agency designated representatives: Chief Tim Henry and outside negotiator Che
Johnson Liebert Cassidy Whitmore
Employee organization: North Central Professional Firefighters Association

Report from Closed Session: No action to report from this Closed Session item.
North Central Fire Protection District Board of Directors

Regular Board Meeting Minutes — December 9, 2021
Page 4 of 5



B) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of Subdivision (d) of
Section 54956.9: Number of cases: 1

Report from Closed Session: No action to report from this Closed Session item.

12. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS/REPORTS
The District Board members wished everyone a Merry Christmas.

13. ANNOUNCEMENTS
A) Next Regular Board Meeting: Thursday, January 27, 2022 at 5:30 p.m.

14. ADJOURNMENT
Motion: To adjourn the meeting at 5:33 p.m.
Moved by: Mr. Nonini, second by Mr. Foglio

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote:
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

Amanda Souza, Board Secretary Date
North Central Fire Protection District

North Central Fire Protection District Board of Directors
Regular Board Meeting Minutes — December 9, 2021
Page 5 of 5



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
THURSDAY, JANUARY 13, 2022
4:00 P.M.
MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER
District Board Vice-Chair Mr. Rusty Nonini called the meeting to order at 4:07 p.m.

Roll Call
Board Members Present: Mr. Michael Golden, Ms. Amanda Souza and Mr. Rusty
Nonini. Mr. Ken Abrahamian and Mr. Michael Foglio were absent.

Also present were Fire Chief Tim Henry, Mr. Ken Price and Mr. Joe Barcelos.

FLAG SALUTE
Chief Henry led the flag salute.

PUBLIC COMMENTS
There were no public comments.

PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING THE CONTENT OF THE DRAFT MAPS AND

PROPOSED SEQUENCE OF ELECTIONS

A) Conduct Public Hearing to invite the Public to provide input regarding the
content of the draft maps and proposed sequence of elections.
Chief Henry stated there are five draft maps along with the demographics to go
with each map. Chief Henry stated following the two public hearings held to invite
the public to provide input regarding the district boundaries, the Ad Hoc Board
Committee met with District staff to develop the maps proposed for this hearing
tonight.

Mr. Nonini opened the floor for the public hearing to invite members of the public
to provide input regarding the content of the proposed draft maps at 4:11 p.m.
There were no comments from members of the public so Mr. Nonini closed the
floor for the public hearing at 4:12 p.m.

The District Board discussed the different maps and asked a few questions that
were answered by Chief Henry.

The second public hearing to invite the public to provide input regarding the
content of the draft maps will be held at the January 27" District Board meeting.
At the District Board meeting scheduled for February 24, another public hearing
will be held at which the Board of Directors will consider and adopt a resolution

North Central Fire Protection District Board of Directors
Special Board Meeting Minutes — January 13, 2022
Page 1 of 2



establishing district or zone elections, including the adoption of a district or zone
boundary map.

5. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS/REPORT
There were no comments.

6. ANNOUNCEMENTS
A) Next Regular Board Meeting: Thursday, January 27, 2022 at 5:30 p.m.

7. ADJOURNMENT
Motion: To adjourn the meeting at 4:23 p.m.
Moved by: Mr. Golden, second by Ms. Souza.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote:
Absent Aye Absent Aye Aye 3/0

Amanda Souza, Board Secretary Date
North Central Fire Protection District

North Central Fire Protection District Board of Directors
Special Board Meeting Minutes — January 13, 2022
Page 2 of 2



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian ¢ Michael Golden
Michael Foglio « Rusty Nonini « Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

15850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 275-5531 » FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief

DATE: January 27, 2022

SUBJECT: Audit - Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2021

Attached is a copy of the audited financial statements for the Fiscal Year ending June 30,
2021. Mr. Bill Patterson with Sampson, Sampson and Patterson will present the audited
financial statements.

GASB 34 regulations require the District complete a Management’'s Discussion and

Analysis, which is included as part of the audit and can be used as an overview of the
financial condition of the District.

Recommended Action: Approve the audit as submitted by Sampson, Sampson and
Patterson for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

REPORT ON AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021



CONTENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report
Management Discussion and Analysis

Government-wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities
Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to
Net Position of Governmental Activities
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —
Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance to Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Notes to Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information:

Schedule of District Net Pension Liability — PARS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and Actual — General Fund — Suppression

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and Actual — Emergency Medical Services

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and Actual — Capital Projects Fund

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

11
12
13
14
15
16
17-32
33
34
35

36

37-38



3148 Willow Avenue, Suite 102
Clovis, California 93612-4739
(559) 291-0277 « FAX (559) 291-0411

Sampson, Sampson & Patterson, LLP
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
North Central Fire Protection District
Kerman, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each
major fund of North Central Fire Protection District (the District), State of California, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable in financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller general of the United States and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit
Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of North Central Fire
Protection District as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in financial position thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



North Central Fire Protection District

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 8, the schedules of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances — budget and actual on pages 34 through 36, and the schedules of the District’s
net pension liability and contributions on page 33 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Government Accounting Standards Board who considers them to be essential parts of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

Implementation of New Accounting Standards

As disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the District implemented GASB Statement No.
68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, and
GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement
Date — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, during the fiscal year.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January
5, 2022 on our consideration of North Central Fire Protection District’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Sampson, Sampsov & Patterson LLP

Clovis, California
January 5, 2022



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2021

This discussion and analysis of the North Central Fire Protection District’s financial performance
provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. Please
read it in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements and notes to those financial statements.

Financial Highlights

The District’s total assets exceeded liabilities (net position) at the close of the fiscal year by $15,699,685.
Of this amount, $8,962,794 is unrestricted net assets, which is available to meet the District’s ongoing
commitments to residents and creditors.

The District’s governmental funds ended the year with a combined fund balance of $10,933,226 which is
an increase of $1,879,438 over June 30, 2020. Of this balance, $10,933,226 is unrestricted and available
for spending at the District’s discretion.

The District’s General Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $6,931,723 an increase of $325,988
over the previous fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. These statements include all activities of
the North Central Fire Protection District. The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities
provide information about the activities of the District as a whole and present a longer-term view of the
District’s finances. Fund financial statements report the District’s operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements by providing information about the District’s most significant funds.

Reporting the District as a Whole

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
District’s finances. These statements include all assets and liabilities of the District using the accrual
basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting method used by most private sector companies.

The statement of net position presents information on all the District’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as one indicator of whether the District’s financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed in the
most recent fiscal year. All changes of net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the event occurs. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported on this statement for some items that
will result on cash flows in the future fiscal periods.

The government-wide financial statements of the District can be found on pages 9 — 10 of this report.



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2021

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s most significant
funds. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Management establishes other funds to control and
manage money for particular purposes. The funds of the District can be divided into two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds. The District has no proprietary funds and three governmental
funds, the General fund, the EMS fund and a Capital projects fund. Fund financial statements can be
found on pages 11 — 16 of this report.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provides
reconciliation between governmental funds and governmental activities. This reconciliation explains the
relationship (or difference) between the fund statements and the government-wide statements.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for the District’s governmental funds. Budgetary
comparison statements are provided to demonstrate compliance to this budget in the supplementary
information on pages 34 - 36.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund statements.

The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 17 — 32 of this report.
Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
other supplementary information which can be found on pages 33 — 36.



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2021

North Central Fire Protection District’s Net Position

Governmental Current Year Prior Year
Activities Total Total
Current Assets $10,281,230 $10,281,230 $ 8,509,911
Other Assets 879,104 879,104 750,195
Net Pension Asset 79,526 79,526
Capital Assets (net depreciation) 6.960.179 6,960,179 6.588.846
Total Assets 18,200,039 18,200,039 15,848,952
Current Liabilities 169,775 169,775 92,279
Non-Current Liabilities 2,173,410 2,173,410 2.593.083
Total Liabilities 2,343,185 2.343.185 2,685,362
Deferred Inflows of Resources 157.169 157,169
Net Position:
Invested in Capital, Net of Related Debt 6,736,891 6,736,891 6,325,075
Unrestricted 8,962,794 8,962,794 6.838,515
Total Net Position $15,699,685 $15,699,685 $13,163,590

Governmental activities

As of June 30, 2021, the District’s governmental activities total assets exceeded liabilities (net position)
by $15,699,685. Net position as noted earlier may serve over time as a useful indicator of the District’s
financial position.

The majority of the District’s long-term liabilities can be attributed to the District’s debt service
requirements secured in 2010 through a private-placement loan to pay a settlement payment to Fresno
County Employees Retirement Association. In April 2017, the District refunded the loan at a better
interest rate to realize significant savings over the term of the loan. Additional information on the
District’s annual debt service can be found on page 26 and continuing on page 27 in the notes to the
financial statements.

Investment in Capital assets amount to $6,960,179 or 44 percent of the total net position.

Unrestricted net assets as of June 30, 2021, are $8,962,794 and may be used to meet the District’s
ongoing commitments to residents and creditors.



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2021

North Central Fire Protection District’s Changes in Net Assets

Govermmental Current Year Prior Year
Activitics Total Total
Revenues:
Charges for services $ 90,211 $ 90,221 $ 97,997
Property taxes 10,700,467 10,700,467 9,700,478
Interest & Use of Property 175,847 175,847 190,332
Grant Contributions 721,302 721,302 8,319
Other revenues 109,333 109,333 74,708
Total Revenues 11,797,160 11,797,160 10,071,834
Expenses:
Suppression 8,038,910 8,038,910 7,170,095
EMS 1,051,304 1,051,304 972,398
Interest 53916 53.916 72,907
Total Expenses 9.144.130 9.144.130 8,215,400
Increase in Net Assets 2,653,030 2,653,030 1,856,434
Net Assets — Beginning 13,163,590 13,163,590 11,307,156
Prior Period Adjustment (116.935) (116,935)
Net Assets — Ending $15,699,685 $15,699,685 $13,163,590

Total governmental activities revenue for the year was $11,797,160 with property tax revenue accounting
for $10,700,467 or 90.7 percent of the District’s governmental activities revenue.

Total governmental expenses for the year were $9,144,130. Expenditures for personnel account for
$5,975,619 or 65.3 percent of the total governmental expenses. Operations expenditures account for

$2,586,908 or 28.3 percent and other expenses account for 6.4 percent of the total governmental expenses.

Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds

The purpose of the District’s governmental fund financial statements (pages 11 - 16), is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the District’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.

As of June 30, 2021, the District’s governmental funds reported a combined ending balance of
$10,933,226, an increase of $1,879,438 from the previous fiscal year.



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2021

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the District. As of June 30, 2021, the total fund balance of
the general fund was $6,931,723. The general fund total balance increased $325,988 from the previous
fiscal year.

General Fund — Budgetary Highlights

The statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget to Actual on pages 34
— 36 outline the differences between the budget and actual numbers.

District revenues were above budget projections by $590,042 and expenditures were over budget by
$76,197.

Capital Assets

The District’s investment in Capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2021, totals
$6,960,179 net of accumulated depreciation. The District’s capital assets include land, structures and
improvements, equipment, apparatus and vehicles. Additional information on the District’s capital assets
can be found on page 25 in the notes to the financial statements.

Long-term Debt

On June 9, 2010, the District closed a $4,100,000 private placement loan with Bank of America for the
financing of a settlement payment for the District’s portion of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability
owed to Fresno County Employee’s Retirement Association. The District began paying debt service
payments in February 2011 and will make semi-annual payments for fifteen years ending August 2025.
The loan has a fixed interest rate of 7.45 percent. In April of 2017, the District refunded the 2010 loan
with Chase Bank at a fixed rate of 2.7 percent. The District will continue to make semi-annual payments
on the refunded loan which will mature in August of 2025,

On December 5, 2015, the District entered into a capital lease totaling $417,645 to purchase a new water
tender and began making annual payments of $49,161 on August 1, 2016. The term of this capital lease is
ten years.

Additional information on the District’s debt service can be found starting on page 26 and continuing on
page 27 in the notes to the financial statements.



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

Property tax revenue accounts for 97 percent of the Districts operating revenue. Since the recession that
negatively affected the District’s property tax revenues from fiscal years 2009 through 2013, the District
has experienced moderate increases in fiscal years 2014 through 2020. In the 2020-2021 fiscal year, the
District received another moderate increase in property tax revenue of 5.94 percent. The tax roll released
for the 2021-2022 fiscal year, shows a similar increase in assessed values in the entire County of Fresno
which includes the District. The District is a small area of Fresno County, so it is difficult to predict the
increase of property tax revenue for the District in the 2021-2022 fiscal year. However, the District has
experienced a 5.38 percent average increase in propetty tax revenue over the past six fiscal years. This
indicates assessed values have experienced a steady increase over time and continue to remain stable.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our residents, taxpayers, and customers with a general
overview of North Central Fire Protection District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s
accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional
financial information, contact Joe Barcelos, Business Manager, North Central Fire Protection District,
15850 W. Keamey Blvd., Kerman CA 93630, (559) 878-4550.



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

ASSETS
Cash $ 10,281,230
Receivables:
Taxes 68,377
Accounts 41,698
Grant 167,380
Interest 68,415
Prepaid expense 533,234
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 6,960,179
Net pension asset 79,526
Total Assets 18,200,039
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 97,639
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 45,636
Accrued interest payable 26,500
Non-Current Liabilities:
Due within one year 469,104
Due in more than one year 1,704.306
Total Liabilities 2,343,185
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related deferred inflows 157,169
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 6,736,891
Unrestricted 8,962,794
Total Net Position $15,699,685

See independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
9



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Program Revenue

Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grants and Grants and Revenue/
Expense Services Contributions  Contributions (Expense)
Governmental Activities
Fire suppression $8,038,910 $90,211 $243,168 $478,134 $(7,227,397)
Emergency medical services 1,051,304 (1,051,304)
Interest 53.916 (53.916)
Total Governmental Activities 9,144,130 90,211 243,168 478.134 (8.332,617)
General Revenue
Property taxes 10,071,891
Intergovernmental 628,576
Interest carnings 175,847
Other 109,333
Total General Revenue 10,985,647
Change in Net Position 2,653,030
Net Position, Beginning of Year 13,163,590
Prior Period Adjustment (116.935)
Net Position, End of Year $15,699.685

See independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.

10



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2021
General Emergency Capital Total
Fund - Medical Projects Governmental
Suppression Services Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash $6,294,843 $634,345 $3,352,042 $10,281,230
Receivables:
Taxes 37,037 4,342 41,379
Accounts 26,550 26,550
Grant 167,380 167,380
Interest 15,954 4,332 6,442 26,728
Prepaid expense 533,234 533,234
Total Assets 7.074.998 643,019 3,358,484 11,076,501
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 97,639 97,639
Accrued payroll liabilities 45,636 45,636
Total Liabilities 143,275 143,275
Fund balances:
Nonspendable 533,234 533,234
Assigned 643,019 3,358,484 4,001,503
Unassigned 6.398.489 6,398,489
Total Fund Balances 6.931.723 643.019 3,358,484 10,933,226
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $7.074,998 $643,019 $3,358,484 $11,076,501

See independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.

11



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE
SHEET TO NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2021

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement
of net position are different because:

Total fund balances — total governmental funds $ 10,933,226

Long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds

Capital assets $ 6,960,179
Net pension asset 79,526 7,039,705

Other assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds:
Receivables collected after the 60 day availability period 83,833

Deferred inflows of resources reflecting the future acquisition of net
position are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in
the governmental funds:
Deferred inflows related to pensions (157,169)

Long-term portion of accrued compensated absences and health benefits
are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds (193,122)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds (1,980,288)

Interest on long-term liabilities is not due and payable in the current period

and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds (26,500)
Net Position of Governmental Activities $15,699,685

See independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
12



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES

Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Grant
Use of money and property
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Operations
Personnel
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

General Emergency Capital Total
Fund - Medical Projects Governmental
Suppression Services Fund Funds
$ 9,062,699 $1,079,445 § 18,360 $10,160,504
620,699 7,877 628,576
90,211 90,211
721,302 721,302
122,856 14,647 30,861 168,364
109,333 109,333
10,727,100 1.101.969 49,221 11,878,290
2,307,176 279,693 39 2,586,908
5,235,832 739,787 5,975,619
969,650 969,650
353,531 49,952 403,483
55,369 7.823 63.192
8,921,558 1,077,255 39 9,998,852
1.805.542 24,714 49,182 1,879.438
2,358,836 2,358,836
(1.479.554) (879.,282) (2,358,836)
(1,479.554) 1,479,554
325,988 24,714 1,528,736 1,879,438
6,605,735 618,305 1,829,748 9.053,788
$6931,723  § 643,019 $ 3,358484  $10,933,226

See independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.

13



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
TO CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Amounts reported for government activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances — total governmental funds $1,879,438

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the

amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current
period 371,333

Governmental funds report principal reductions of long-term liabilities as
expenditures. However, in the government-wide financial statements
principal reductions of long-term liabilities reduce debt and are not
included within the statement of activities. This is the amount of net
principal reductions of long-term debt during the current period 403,483

Revenues collected after the 60 day availability period in the statement of
activities do not provide current financial resources and are not reported
as revenue in the funds (65,982)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds:

Adjustment to compensated absences liability $ 14,278
Adjustment to health benefits liability 1,912
Adjustment to deferred inflows for pension expense 39,292 55,482

Governmental funds report interest payments on long-term liabilities as
expenditures. However, in the government-wide financial statements,
interest expense on long-term debt is recognized as it is incurred. This

1s the difference between the methods of interest recognition 9,276
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $2.653,030

See independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
14



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Total Assets

NET POSITION
Restricted for pension benefits

Total Net Position

See independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.

JUNE 3

15

0,2021

PARS 115
Pension
Trust Fund

$ 150,203
$ 150,203

$ 150,203

$ 150,203



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

PARS 115
Pension
Trust Fund
ADDITIONS

Employer contributions $ 150,000
Total contributions 150,000
Investment income 203
TOTAL ADDITIONS/CHANGE IN NET POSITION 150,203

NET POSITION — BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR § 150,203

See independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
16



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The North Central Fire Protection District was formed by resolution of the Board of Supervisors
of Fresno County on December 11, 1945, under the provisions of Section 14001 et seq. of the
Health and Safety Code. Effective September 6, 1966, the District was automatically considered
as reorganized and operating under the Fire Protection Law of 1961 covered in Section 13801-
13998 of the Health and Safety Code. The District is governed by a Board of Directors. The
District has no component units.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement
of changes in net position) report information on all of the activities of the primary government.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenue includes 1) charges to
customer or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items
not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met. Amounts reported as program revenue include charges to customets
for goods and services, operating grants and contributions and capital grants and contributions.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
when they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the District revenues are available if they are collected within
60 days of the end of the current period. Expenditures generally are recorded when liabilities are
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgements, are recorded only
when payment is due.

17



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(continued)

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the District’s major operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

The Emergency Medical Services (EMS) — Zone 1 Fund accounts for the activities of the
District’s emergency medical services operations.

The Capital Project Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by EMS —
Zone 1 Fund).

Additionally, the District reports the following fiduciary fund:

The PARS 115 Pension Trust Fund accounts for assets placed in an irrevocable trust for
prefunding pension related liabilities.

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Equity
1. Cash and Investments

The District invests its excess cash principally with the Fresno County Treasury. The County
pools these funds with those of other entities in the County and invests the cash in accordance
with California Government Codes. Generally, investments with the County are available for
withdrawal on demand.

2. Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of billed, but unpaid amounts, property taxes and interest on funds
deposited with the County Treasury.

3. Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable
governmental columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined
by the District as assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in
excess of five years. All material fixed assets are valued at historical cost. Donated fixed assets
are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated. When an asset is disposed of, cost
and related accumulated depreciation is removed and any gain or loss arising from its disposal is
credited or charged to operations.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized.

18



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(continued)

Depreciation is recorded by using the straight-line method. The book value of each asset is
reduced by equal amounts over its estimated useful life as follows:

Buildings 50 years

Land Improvements 1-20 years

Equipment 5-20 years
5-21

4. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District has one type
of deferred outflow which qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred inflows related to
pensions.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. The separate financial element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an
inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. The District has one type
of deferred inflow which qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred inflows related to
pensions.

5. Compensated Absences

The District’s vacation policy provides for a limited accumulation of earned vacation leave. The
liability for vested leave (vacation, compensated time off, holiday) is reported on the
government-wide statement of net position and is computed based on the unused days multiplied
by the current rate of pay. No liability has been recorded for non-vesting leave such as sick
leave.

6. Pension

For purposes of measuring the net pension asset/liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the plan and additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plan. For this
purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit
terms. Plan investments are reported at fair value. GASB 68 requires that the reported results
pertain to asset and liability information within certain defined timeframes. The following
timeframes are used for pension plan reporting:

Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS)

Valuation Date January 1, 2021
Measurement Date June 30, 2021
Measurement Period  July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021

19



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(continued)

7. Fund Balances

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance amounts in the
following classifications: Nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.
Nonspendable amounts represents inventories, prepaid items and long-term receivables.
Restricted amounts have been restricted by external bodies. Committed amounts have been
restricted by the District’s governing board. Assigned amounts represent tentative designations
by the District. Unassigned amounts are spendable and are not restricted, committed or
assigned.

The District will spend the funds restricted for their purpose within those funds first followed by
assigned funds for their intended purposes prior to spending any unassigned funds.

8. Net Position

Net position presents the difference between assets and liabilities in the statement of net
position. Net position invested in capital assets are reduced by the outstanding balances of any
borrowings used for the acquisition or improvement of those assets. Net position comprises the
various net earnings from operating income, nonoperating revenue and expense and capital
contributions. Net positions are classified in the following three components:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — This component of net position consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds,
mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvements of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end,
the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of
invested in capital assets, net of related debt. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the
same net asset components as the unspent proceeds.

Restricted — This component of net position consists of constraints imposed by creditors (such as
through debt covenants), grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments or
constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position — This component of net position consists of net position that do not
meet the definition of restricted or invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

When expenses are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted components

of net position are available, the District’s policy is to apply the restricted component of net
position first, then the unrestricted component of net position as needed

20



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Implementation of GASB Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District implemented GASB Statement No. 68
(GASB 68), Accounting and Financial Reporting For Pensions — an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 27, and GASB Statement No. 71 (GASB 71) Pension Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an Amendment of GASB
Statement No. 68. The primary objectives of GASB 68 and GASB 71 are to improve
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions by
establishing standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of
resources, deferred inflows of resources, and cxpenses/expenditures. The statements
require employers to report a net pension liability for the difference between the present
value of projected pension benefits for past service and restricted resources held in trust for
the payment of benefits. The Statements identify the methods and assumptions that should
be used to project the benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their
actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ
from those estimates.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The District established a budget for its governmental fund for the year ended June 30,
2021. The budget is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP).

Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and
the government-wide statement of net position

The government-wide fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance-
total governmental funds and net position-governmental activities as reported in the
government-wide statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains
that “the long-term portion of accrued compensated absences and health benefits are not
due and payable in the current period and therefore, are not reported in the funds.” The
details of the $(193,122) difference are as follows:

Accrued health benefits $ (24,321)
Accrued compensated absences (168.801)

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance-total governmental
funds to arrive at net position-governmental activities $(193,122)

21



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(continued)

2.  Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide
statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
includes reconciliation between net changes in fund balances-total governmental funds and
changes in net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains “Governmental funds
report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense.” The details of the $371,333 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay $ 969,650
Depreciation expense (598.317)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balance-
total Governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
assets-Governmental activities $ 371,333

Note 2 — Cash and Investments

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2021 consist of the following:

Cash on hand $ 902
Deposits with financial institutions 382,039
Deposits with county treasury 9.898.289

Total cash and investments $10,281,230

Bank deposit accounts are insured up to $250,000 per institution by the Federal Depository
Insurance Corporation (FDIC). All of the District’s cash balances held by financial institutions
are fully insured or collateralized.

Cash in County Treasury

Within the guidelines of Government Code Section 53601, the District maintains substantially
all of its cash in the Fresno County Treasury as part of the common investment pool.
Assumptions made in determining the fair value of the pooled investment portfolios are
available from the County Treasurer. The County is restricted by Government Code Section
53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest in time deposits, U.S. government securities, state
registered warrants, notes or bonds, State Treasurer’s investment pool, bankers’ acceptances,
commercial paper, negotiable and non-negotiable certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements,
and mortgage-backed pass through securities.

22



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(continued)

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code

The District does not have an investment policy independent of what is allowed under the
California Government Code. The table below identifies the investment types that are
authorized by the Code. The table also identifies certain provisions of the Code that address
interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment
Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer

Local Agency Bonds 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker’s Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 years None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base value None
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% None
Mortgage Pass-through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
JPA Pools (other investment pools) N/A None None

The Fresno County Treasury Investment Pool Statement of Investment Policy is more stringent
than the California Government Code. As of June 30, 2021, the Investment Pool portfolio
complied with its statement of Investment Policy.

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.

As of June 30, 2021, the weighted average maturity of the investments contained in the Fresno
County Treasury Investment Pool is 2.17 years. 34.4% of the portfolio matures within 12

months, 26.2% matures between | and 3 years, and 39.4% matures between 3 and 5 years.

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to
the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization. The Fresno County Treasury Investment Pool does
not have a rating provided by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. However,
the assets of the portfolio held by the pool as of June 30, 2021 had an average dollar weighted
quality rating of “AA+.”

23



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

There are no investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total District
investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California
Government Code does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to
custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The California
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by the state or local
government units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository
regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the
pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited
by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure District
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured
public deposits. As of June 30, 2021, none of the District’s deposits in excess of FDIC limits
were held in uncollateralized accounts.

Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in securities
through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as the Fresno County

Treasury Investment Pool).

Investment in Fresno County Treasury Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the Fresno County Treasury Investment Pool that is
regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector of Fresno County. The fair value of the District’s investment
in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the
District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the Treasury Investment Pool for the entire
Treasury Investment Pool portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by the Treasury
Investment Pool, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

24



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(continued)

Note 3 — Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 122762 8 8 § 122,762
Construction/projects in process 417,720 154,410 (417.,720) 154,410
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 540,482 154,410 _(417.720) 277,172
Capital assets being depreciated:
Structures and improvements 3,882,800 519,489 4,402,289
Equipment, fumniture and fixtures 1,012,108 597,887 (123,956) 1,486,039
Apparatus and vehicles 6,187.793 115,584 (254,557) 6.048.820
Total capital assets, being depreciated 11,082,701 1,232,960 (378,513) 11,937,148
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Structures and improvements (1,629,892) (138,599) (1,768,491)
Equipment, furiture and fixtures (824,988) (108,698) 123,956 (809,730)
Apparatus and vehicles (2,579,457) (351,020) 254,557 (2,675.920)
Total accumulated depreciation (5.034,337) (598,317) 378,513 (5.254,141)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 6,048,364 634,643 6,683.007

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 6,588,846 $ 789,053 $(417,720) $ 6,960,179

25



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(continued)

Note 4 — Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Classification

Due in

Beginning Additions/ Ending Due in More Than

Balance Adjustments  Reductions Balance One Year One Year

2017 Lease agreement $2,120,000 $ $363,000 $1,757,000 $ 372,000 $1,385,000
Capital lease 263,771 40,483 223,288 41,814 181,474
Health benefits 26,233 2,738 4,650 24,321 4,650 19,671
Compensated absences 183.079 14,278 168,801 50,640 118,161
$2,593,083 2,738 3422411 52,173,410 5 469,104 $1,704,306

2017 Lease Agreement

In April, 2018, the District secured financing to defease and pay the outstanding balance of a
lease obligation due to Bank of America. The amount due to Bank of America at the time of
defeasement was $2,849,424. The new obligation is duec to JP Morgan chase Bank and
commenced at $3,179,000. Terms of the new lease call for an initial payment of $218,081 on
August 1, 2018 with subsequent semi-annual payments of approximately $208,700 due each
February 1% and August 1* through August 1, 2025. The lease bears interest at the rate of 2.70
percent per annum. Interest paid on the lease for the year ended June 30, 2021 amounted to
$54,515. Real property and improvements subject to the lease were used as collateral for the
financing.

The annual debt service requirements for the financing at June 30, 2021, are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2022 § 372,000 $ 44,941 § 416,941
2023 383,000 34,830 417,830
2024 393,000 24,422 417,422
2025 403,000 13,743 416,743
2026 206,000 2,781 208.781

$1,757,000 120,717 $1.877,717

26



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(continued)

Capital Lease

On December 5, 2015, the District entered into a capital lease for the acquisition of a new water
tender (fire engine) and related equipment. The water tender had a cost of $417,645 and was
delivered to the District in August, 2016. The lease matures on August 1, 2025. Interest paid
for the year ended June 30, 2021 on the lease was $8,678. The lease calls for annual payments

of $49,161 which are due each August 1* as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 41,814 $ 7,347 $ 49,161
2023 43,190 5,971 49,161
2024 44,611 4,550 49,161
2025 46,079 3,082 49,161
2026 47,594 1,567 49,161

$223,288 $22,517 $245,805

Note 5 — Pension Plan

General Information

Plan Description

The District provides retirement benefits through an Agent Multiple Employer plan (Plan)
administered through Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS). Full-time employees hired
on or after January 1, 2019 are ecligible to participate in the plan, excluding the Fire Chief.
Plan participants are required to contribute a percentage of compensation equal to at least one-
half of the normal cost of the retirement benefit. Employer contribution amounts are
determined by an actuarial study performed as required under Section 7504 of the California
Government Code. Tier I employees (Safety) become eligible for retirement benefits upon
attainment of age 50 with at least 5 years of service. Tier II employees (Miscellaneous)
become eligible for retirement benefits upon attainment of age 52 with at least 5 years of
service.

Benefits Provided

The Plan provides retirement benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to
plan members. The retirement benefit is a monthly allowance equal to the product of the
benefit factor (2% at age 57 for Tier I employees and 2% at 62 for Tier I employees), years of
service, and final compensation. The final compensation is the highest average annual
compensation paid during any 36 months of employment with the District, capped at the
PEPRA Compensation Limit (120% of 2012 Social Security wage base adjusted with CPI).

27



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(continued)

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At June 30, 2021, the measurement date, the following number of participants were covered by the

benefit terms:
Number of Covered

Participants

Inactives currently receiving benefits 0
Inactives entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 0
Active employees 63
Total 63

Contributions

For the measurement period ended June 30, 2021, contributions were as follows:

Miscellaneous

Contributions — employer $378,714

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and
shall be effective on July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the
Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by Bartel Associates, LLC. The
actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits
cammed by employees during the year. The District is required to contribute the difference
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of the employees.

For the year ended June 30, 2021 the District recognized pension expense of $343,612.
Pension expense represents the change in the net pension liability during the measurement
period, adjusted for actual contributions and the deferred recognition of changes in investment
gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial assumptions or method, and plan benefits. At June 30,
2021 the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments $ $ 157,169
Total $ 157,169

28



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(continued)

The $157,169 reported as deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in pension expense
for each of the subsequent four years as follows:

Measurement Deferred Outflows (Inflows)
Period Ended June 30 of Resources
2022 $(39,292)
2023 (39,292)
2024 (39,292)
2025 (39,293)
$(157,169)

Actuarial Assumptions

Updated procedures were used to roll forward the Total Pension Liability from the January 1,
2021 valuation date to the June 30, 2021 measurement date, and roll backward the Total
Pension Liability from the January 1, 2021 valuation date to June 30, 2020, The June 30, 2021
total pension asset/liability was based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate 5.75%

Inflation 2.75%

Salary Increases Aggregate — 3% annually

Merit — CalPERS 1997-2015 Experience Study
Mortality, Retirement,
Disability, Termination CalPERS 1997-2015 Experience Study
Mortality Improvement Mortality projected fully generational with Scale MP-2020

Changes in Assumptions

There were no changes in assumptions or benefit terms since the June 30, 2020 measurement
date.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension asset/liability was 5.75%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members
will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers
will be made at statutory required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions,
the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined by Bartel
Associates, LLC using stochastic simulations of geometric average retums over 20 years.
Projected returns are based on 5 independent Investment Advisors 2016 of 2017 10-year Capital
Market Assumptions and where available, investment advisors anticipated long-term trends.

29



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(continued)

The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows:

Target Allocation Expected Real

Asset Class: PARS-Moderate Rate of Return
Global equity 48.25% 4.56%
Fixed income 45.00% 0.78%
REITs 1.75% 4.06%
Cash 5.00% -0.50%

> Assumed long-term rate of inflation of 2.75%
»  Expected long-term net rate of return of 5.75%, rounded

Changes in Net Pension Liability/Asset

The following table shows the changes in net pension liability/asset over the measurement period:

Total Pension Fiduciary Net Net Pension
Liability Position Liability (Asset)

Balance at June 30, 2020 $ 906,164 $ 903,457 $ 2,707
Changes for the year

Service Cost 980,713 980,713

Interest 107,719 107,719

Contributions — Employer 378,702 (378,702)

Contributions — Employee 520,304 (520,304)

Net Investment Income 272,715 (272,715)

Benefit Payments (27,005) (27,005)

Administrative Expenses (1,056) 1,056
Net changes 1.061.427 1,143,660 (82.233)
Balance at June 30, 2021 $1,967,591 $2,047,117 $ (79,526)

Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

The Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings on Pension Plan
Investments is amortized over a five-year period on a straight-line basis. One-fifth is recognized
in pension expense during the measurement period, and the remaining Net Difference Between
Projected and Actual Investment Earnings on Pension Plan Investments is amortized over the
remaining amortization periods.

30



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(continued)

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the District’s the net pension liability/(asset) as of the measurement date
calculated using the discount rate of 5.75 percent, as well as what the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (4.75 percent) or 1-
percentage point higher (6.75 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
4.75% 5.75% 6.75%
District’s proportionate share of the
net pension plan liability $414,725 $ (79.526) $(461,657)

Payable to Pension Plan

At June 30, 2021, the District reported a payable of $0 for the outstanding amount of
contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Note 6 — Fresno County Emplovers Retirement Association Contributions

In 2004, the County of Fresno issued pension obligation bonds to extinguish a portion of the
County’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability in the Fresno County Employers Retirement
Association. The District remains obligated to make contributions to the County for its portion
of the pension obligation bonds relating to unfunded liabilities for the years in which the District
had employees participating in the County’s retirement plan. The District’s pension obligation
bond contributions to the County of Fresno were $343,372 for the year ended June 30, 2021.
The District’s pension obligation bond amounts, adjusted annually for inflation, are expected to
be paid by the District through June 30, 2035.

Note 7 — Interfund Transfers

The following is a summary of District operating transfers for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Fund Transfer In Transfer Out
General Fund — Suppression $ $1,479,554
Capital Projects Fund 2.358.836 879,282
$2,358,836 $2,358,836

31



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(continued)

Note 8 — Joint Venture

The District participates in one joint venture under the joint powers agreement (JPA); the Fire
Agencies Insurance Risk Authority. The relationship between the District and the JPA is such
that the JPA is not a component unit of the District for financial reporting purposes.

The Fire Agencies Insurance Risk Authority (FAIRA) arranges for liability and property
insurance for its members, all of which are fire districts located within California. FAIRA is
governed by a board of directors consisting of representatives from member districts. The board
controls operations of FAIRA, including selection of management and approval of operating
budgets, independent of any influence by the member districts belong their representation on the
board. Each member district pays a premium commensurate with the level of coverage required
and shares surpluses and deficits proportionately to their participation in FAIRA.

Note 9 — City of Fresno Service Agreement

In February, 2019, the District entered into a contract with the City of Fresno to provide fire
protection and emergency services to the District, beginning July 1, 2019. The contract, which
is effective through June 30, 2022, supersedes the 2006 Agreement with the City of Fresno.
Required annual payments for the years ending June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2022 are $1,035,102
and $1,066,468, respectively.

Note 10— Assigned Fund Balance

The following is an analysis of assigned fund balance as of June 30, 2021:

Assigned for emergency medical activities $ 643,019
Assigned for fire apparatus and capital improvements 3,358,484
$4,001,503

Note 11 — Prior Period Adjustment

As disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the District implemented GASB Statement
No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement
No. 27, and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to
the Measurement Date — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, during the fiscal year.

The effect on the Statement of Activities of applying these pronouncements resulted in a
reduction to the beginning net position of $116,935.

Note 12 — Subsequent Events

The District has reviewed the results of operations and evaluated subsequent events for the
period of time from its year ended June 30, 2021 through the date of the accountants’ report.

32



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
FOR THE LAST YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS*

Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) — Schedule of the District’s Net Pension Liability

Measurement Period 2020/2021
Net pension liability (asset) (79,526)
Covered payroll $3,707.,403
Net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of covered payroll -2.1%
Fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 104.0%

*Fiscal year 2021 was the first year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown

Notes to Schedule
1. There were no changes to benefit terms during the measurement period

Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) — Schedule of the District’s Contribution

Measurement Period 2020/2021
Actuarially determined contribution $ 378,714
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contributions $ 378,714
Contributions deficiency (excess) $ .
Covered payroll $3,707,403
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 10.22%

*Fiscal year 2021 was the first year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown

33



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GENERAL FUND — SUPPRESSION

REVENUES

Property and sales taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Grant
Use of money and property
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Operations
Personnel
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in/(out)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance
Final Budget-
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$8,676,466 $9,015,819 $ 9,062,699 $ 46,880
65,900 596,415 620,699 24,284
30,000 33,558 90,211 56,653
341,073 721,302 380,229
115,514 114,359 122,856 8,497
28,500 41,627 109.333 67,706
8,916,380 10,142.851 10,727,100 584,249
2,169,760 1,878,468 2,307,176 (428,708)
5,697,127 5,686,220 5,235,832 450,388
842,635 874,043 969,650 (95,607)
342,067 353,531 353,531
65.169 55,606 55.369 237
9.116,758 8.847.868 8,921,558 (73.690)
(200,378) 1,294 983 1.805.542 510,559
142.635 (1.479.554) (1.479.554)
(57,743) (184,571) 325,988 510,559
6.605.735 6,605,735 6.605,735
$6,547,992 $6,421.164 $6,931,723 $510,559

34



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance
Final Budget-
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Property taxes $1,033,812 $1,074,078 $1,079,445 $ 5,367
Use of money and property 12,000 14,497 14,647 150
Intergovernmental 7,600 7.578 7.877 299
Total Revenues 1,053,412 1,096,153 1.101.969 5.816
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Operations 256,342 269,253 279,693 (10,440)
Personnel 673,078 747,720 739,787 7,933
Debt service:
Principal 50,126 49,952 49,952
Interest 9,550 7.823 7,823
Total Expenditures 989.096 1,074,748 1,077,255 (2,507)
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 64,316 21,405 24.714 3.309
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 618.305 618.305 618.305
Fund Balances, End of Year $ 682,621 $ 639,710 $ 643,019 $ 3.309

35



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES
Property taxes
Use of money and property
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Operations
Personnel
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers in/(out)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

Variance
Final Budget-
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
S 26,000 $18,360 $ 18,360 $
43,000 30,884 30,861 (23)
69,000 49,244 49221 (23)
39 39
39 39
69.000 49.205 49,182 (23)
(142,635) 1.479.554 1.479.554
(73,635) 1,528,759 1,528,736 (23)
1,829,748 1,829.748 1,829,748
$1,756,113 $3,358,507 $3,358,484 $  (23)

36




3148 Willow Avenue, Suite 102
Clovis, California 936124739
(559) 291-0277 * FAX (559) 291-6411

Sampson, Sampson & Patterson, LLP
CERTIFIED PuBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
North Central Fire Protection District
Kerman, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities and each major fund of North Central Fire Protection District (the District) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2021 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 5, 2022.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered North Central
Fire Protection District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material wecaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

37



North Central Fire Protection District

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether North Central Fire Protection District’s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of the Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal Control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Sampson, Sampsow & Patterson LLP

Clovis, California
January 5, 2022

38



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian * Michael Golden
Michael Foglio * Rusty Nonini + Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

15850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 275-5531 « FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief

DATE: January 27, 2022

SUBJECT: Second Public Hearing for Public Input Regarding Content of Draft Maps

This is the second Public Hearing scheduled for the process of transitioning from at large
to by-district or zone elections. The first Public Hearing was held earlier this month on
January 13,

This second Public Hearing is to invite public to provide input regarding the content of the
draft maps and proposed sequence of elections.

Recommended Action: Conduct the Public Hearing.

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



86Z°'LS :|ejo] uopendod [ejo|

9l LE9 121 ove 0zy's 14445 %566 - 26101 S 101d1SIg

9 (A 9. 09 181l ¥89°/ %€0°56 - /1004 ¥ 101¥1SIa

9 Gl6 9Z1 0.2 €052 G62'9 %88 ¥6 - 9ec’'0L € 10141SId

9 (3272 09 1% €99°L GelL'l %G8 ¥6 -98¢'0L ¢ 1OoR41SIa

€l S08 o¥lL 26l G.0's 6.6'¢ %986 -/9€'0L 1 1OI¥1SIa
ISpue[S| ojideg UelSy  ueduauly SANEN Yoeig SNUM Jluedsiy "UAaQ % uonendog s

zz0z ‘1 ‘Aenuer — Aewwng uoneindod

ONIdVIN LORILSIA - L# TvSOdOud



-+

o
i
Yoo ¢

FLOMISIO

S1014151Q 19qWIBIA pieog |ediud) YMON T# pasodoud

sen

52 _ 0
aveld 0o
a0'jd WL
aoeld 9g[__|

SIMISI

Spyunsiguenny:
uoneAISSOY UBIPU| 2207
aul ;emogseunadig
peosey ——
ISEENI

eary solep [ |
$oo|g snsual |

stohef deyw




86Z°LS :[ej0] uone|ndod |ejo|

9l €9 12212 ove 0Z¥'S 444> %SG6°v6 - 26101 G LOmd1SIa
9 09 08 09 125" 6€6°L %68 ¥6 - L1€0L ¥ LOI1SIa
9 cl6 L2l €Le €gy'e G209 %S0°G6 --6/6'6 € 101d1SId
9 374 19 0G 199°L 899°/ %6816 - €LE'0L ¢ 1omi1sIa
€l 918 ovl v6l veL's 160 %6.°¥6 - 10501 L LOoIMdlsIa
I19pue|S| JljIoBd UEBISY UBJLAWY 9AREBN  )oe|g S}IYM oiuedsiH ‘UASQ % uonejndog PuIsIq

zzoz ‘| ‘Aenuer — Aewwng uonejndod

ONIdVIN LO1¥41SI1d - 2# TvSO0dOdd



uofRMIBSIY UelpU| LoD
aul emodauledid———
peodjiey] ——

SEETIES
eary s [ |

yoo|g snsuayy

JaquidN pieog [esjud) YioN z# pasodoud i e

T
o+ o
a ’_._ 5 I
.\._.
58'PE ﬁ .-.“ Ll N =
e - FADIH1SIO g, 5 u...&. -
w=ia! B oy
. | t.ﬂ Al _”6 o Ay
P -4
i . | [
)| — _.
x % o
...__|L . ! ||M._.r... .V .Lls
il B = S S| — T
B i T S
iR 5 e
) B | e 57 _
; ! s » i a%eld" 00
= ” : NS ooeld WL
= il soeld 9g[__|
SCHA \; NS o] spomsIq
ET ] z = £ SIDETg RUCTI o A
. |




86Z°LS :lejo] uone|ndod [ejo)

9T LE9 ST ove oTv's 14243 %5676 T61°0T S 1o141SId
L 919 8L 19 €097 010'8 %086 687'0T ¥ 1O141s1d
9 SL6 91 0L¢ €0S'C S6C°9 %8876 9€€'0T € 1DO1y1sIa
S LSL ¥9 ¥S 99T EVS'L %5966 6L1°0T ¢ 10141SI1d
€l S6L veT 61 L6y GE]‘E %6676 Z0T'0T T 1Oid1s1a
Japuejs] dljided ueisy uedLIDdWwy w\ﬂ_u.lwuz yoejg 9JIYM oluedsiH ‘UA9q % uoljejndod pouIsIg

220z ‘1 ‘Asenuep — Alewwng uonendod

ONIdVIN LOIMLSIA - €# TVSOdOdd



=T ] i Rk R \ /
N /
— S S N\ :
. !.C..sam \n.u.h_ N ....._. /
//.../ oé”b. (& e \
= ,./, | ! Nm. : _
LY N /N
< A / = JV&/
, ™ / L
3 ¢ N/ 1
~..-u { \ ’,
wL _. T
- ~ | o~
[ A |
—— L
_ _ F T MMM%
= y
_ - / p
- [<4 e 1
I A o TS ~ 2
R L | TR A
= -
5 o L
- 7 » o Ao
=3
_ _
_ m, - g
=
Z1DMESIa |
salp
———
S¢ _
8m_m|oo_ﬂ.u
ed Wl
aseld og[_|
sPWsIg

SI214151Q 19BNl pieog |eJiud) YLION €4 pasodoud

[SRINETTy RUET 15o EE
UONIBAISSaY UeIpU] oo 5 o
au remodeumedld ——
peoijley ———

SEETHS
eary 1Blepn |
yoo|g snsuapy |

ssahe| deyw



86Z°LS :|ejol uonendod |ejo}

91 LE9 12515 ove 0Z¥'s 444> %S6'¥6- ¢6L'0L S 1O1¥1SIa
9 ¥09 08 09 4N 6€6°L %68 ¥6- L0l ¥ 1o1¥1SI1d
9 0€0°) ¢cl 8.¢ ey’ 00L'9 %.L6°16- LL'0L € LOIYLSIg
9 12272 €9 Ly cLL') €TL'. %08 ¥6- Z8y’0lL Z LoMd1SIa
€l SG.L LE) c6l €66t 126°¢ %96 ¥6- 9910} | LOI¥LSIA
JSpUB[S| JJIoBd UeISY uedHally SANEN  Moelg UM SluedsiH "UA3Q 9%  uonejndod PuIsig

2coe ‘| ‘Menuepr — Atrewwng uonejndogd

ONIdVIN LORILSIA - ¥# TVSOdOdd



J9qUIBN pieog |e13U) YHION b pasodoud

SN
Y 1

5% _
ase|d oo&

aceid o1l
soeld og[_|
spustg
spusiqeuny T
uonealssay uelpuj o 2o ¢
aur samodseuladid
peojjiey ———
QEETIN
eany e[|
yoojg snsusy |
ssahef dey




86Z°LS :[e10] uonendod |ejot

ol 1€9 vGl ove 0zy's 444> %SG6 6" ¢6L'0L G 1oI1d1sIa
9 09 08 09 vLG L 6€6°L %68 6~ ZLEOL ¥ 1OI¥1SIa
9 910l 6L1L 8.2 10 4 6¥0'9 %€0 56" 6200} € 10I41SIa
9 127 €9 Ly TLL) €cl'l %08 ¥6- 28’0l Z 101d1sIa
€l 69/, orL Z6l 1€0°S 2.6'E %06 ¥6- 8/2°0L | 101d1SIa
1spue|s| OJidBd UBISY UuedHdWY 9AREN  oelg UM JjuedsiH ‘UASQ % uonendod s

2202 ‘| ‘Aenuep — Alewwng uonejndogd

ONIdVIN LORILSIA - §# TVSOdOud



19QWIBIAl pieog |ei3ua) YlioN S# pasodoud

]
™~ p
= .//.. \x\ .
! / .._ JV&
- i N f 3
/ s ,I__\M..
“_ oo ,_.f
& A ﬁL 'V
/ - _.wur
. /L i ¢
L1 i _u!mw T a - “W
-W_.M o au\— * P =
al, @
- N- - - .h_\ \ \\«
> ~s
4]
sapN
| —
§¢ _ 0
3%8d 00|
Bl Wl
soeld 9g[ |

shusig
spmsiqwsung 770
uoneM9SaY URlpUj 22 ° ]
aul 1emodsauladid
peosjiey ———

Sleallg a M

easy e[ |

ooig snsus) | |
stofe) deyy




3%

suonebiysauj
uo juadg sinoH

| sinoH @140

Sdc

65 uonels

85 uonels &
LS uone)s =
gs uonels m
sguones m

NOILLVLS NI 5T
A8 SNOLLVYOILS3IANI 40 1IN3IDHId

(Apadoug)
sallq -19Yl0 W

sall4
TRITEY N

ali4
uonejabaA i

soll4
ainonns m

AY3IA0I3N
1S0D

3dAL A9 SNOILYDIL _
YA T20Z HLNOW 43d INNOD NOILVOILSIANI Al OILVDILSIAN

1202 13quia23( 410} So1lsiie1s uonediasanu| ali4 [|e4anQ 1141sIq




%0
ysiqqny

VVON 65735 85135 LSS 9535 55 1S

- - 0
041 _ _ e s 10y _ z
VVON & uoneiss %It 85§ ¥
6S°I1SH LSISE 14 S 9
85ISH 95 15 g
S5 ISH
LS°1ST oL
95°1S® LL 2l
SSISH
(20) uoness Aq 9, jje> buiddepianp
%Y
3dAL A9 S3dI4 abesany  swi] Xem Lwi] oD
OI9DN 43)DN 8SUON LSUDN 990N SSUON

00°005‘0CS

SSO1 ¥4 TvioL

I 1
sa4l4 mE_ 1 9suodsay abeiany

0]

s|ied |ejol
1Z0Z 49quiadag




NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian ¢ Michael Golden
Michael Foglio * Rusty Nonini ¢« Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

15850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 275-5531 « FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief

DATE: January 27, 2022

SUBJECT: COVID-19 Special District Relief Program

The State of California’s 2021 Budget Act appropriated $100 million one-time funds to
provide fiscal relief to independent special districts for revenue losses and or
unanticipated costs incurred due to COVID-19 public health emergency needs.

The California Special District Association (CSDA) of which the district is a member,
contacted special District’s throughout the state to let them know of this opportunity to be
reimbursed for COVID related expenses or loss of revenues.

The District submitted for reimbursement to receive funds from this relief program on
October 13, 2021. The District’s total amount submitted for reimbursement was $289,940
and on December 27, 2021, the District received $74,832 which is 25.8% of the total
reimbursement submitted. CSDA informed all special district’s that we would most likely
not receive 100% reimbursement because this was the only program addressing the
impact of COVID-19 on special district's so the $100 million would have to be divided
amongst all the special districts within the state.

The County of Fresno provided $150,000 COVID relief reimbursement to the District in
February of 2021 from the CARES Act funds the County received.

Recommended Action: Informational.

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian « Michael Golden
Michael Foglio * Rusty Nonini * Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

15850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 275-5531 « FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief

DATE: January 27, 2022

SUBJECT: American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)

The County of Fresno will receive approximately $194 million of federal stimulus funding
from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021. The stimulus funds are to be used to support
public health expenditures, address negative economic impact, replace lost public sector
revenue, provide premium pay for essential workers and invest in infrastructure.

The District applied for an opportunity to be awarded ARPA funding through the County
by submitting two Statement of Interests. One Statement is for the renovations to re-
open District Station 59 for the costs of station improvements totaling $1,085,668. The
second Statement is to purchase two fire engines to replace the 20-year old District
engines being placed back into first-line service when station 59 is opened. The total for
the fire engines replacement submitted in this statement of interest is $1,830,780.

Attached is a copy of both Statement of Interests submitted as well as copies of
attachment #4 of each statement which outlines the proposed budget, timeline and
sources of obtained and potential funding for each statement of interest.

The outcome of both Statement of Interests will be known in April or May of 2022.

Recommended Action: Informational.

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



. k& &k k&

THE
THE COUNTY OF FRESNO
‘“‘,ﬁ'&’é,'ﬁé}“o'é'igﬂ’ . STATEMENT OF INTEREST

ORGANIZATION INFORMATION

NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION
Organization Legal Name: DISTRICT Date: 1/6/2022

Organization Legal Classification: CALIFORNIA FIRE PROTECTION SPECIAL DISTRICT

Examples: inc, LLC, DBA, 501c3

Address: 15850 W KEARNEY BLVD. Unit:
Street Address
KERMAN, CA. 93630
City and State Zip

Authorized Representative: TIMOTHY HENRY

First and Last Name

Title: FIRE CHIEF Phone: (s59) 785-7057 Email: TiM.HENRY@NORTHCENTRALFIRE.ORG

PLEASE READ EACH QUESTION CAREFULLY, AND ANSWER WITH AS MUCH DETAIL AS POSSIBLE

ORGANIZATION’S PROJECT INFORMATION

1. Project Title: FIRE STATION 59 Re-OPENING AND IMPROVEMENTS

2. Describe whether, and if so, how this project activity will promote strong, equitable growth, including
racial equity, among groups and communities in Fresno County: SEE ATTACHMENT 1

3. Describe whether, and if so, how this project activity will positively impact disadvantaged or
underserved communities within Fresno County: SEE ATTACHMENT 2

Has this project activity received funding through the COVID-19 Relief Fund (CRF)? E? %’



5. Isyour organization interested in seeking ARPA funding for a project activity that is YES NO

eligible for funding by the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF)? O X
6. Isyour organization interested in seeking ARPA funding for a project activity that is YES NO

eligible for funding by the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF)? O X
7. Does your organization reside in or serve a Qualified Census Tract? (A Qualified Census

Tract (QCT) is any census tract (or equivalent geographic area defined by the Census Bureau) in which at YES NO

least 50% of households have an income less than 60% of the Area Median Gross Income (AMG)). HUD has X D

defined 60% of AMGI as 120% of HUD's Very Low-Income Limits (VLiLs), which are based on 50% of area
median family income, adjusted for high cost and low-income areas.)

If yes, please explain: SEE ATTACHMENT 3

8. Which category or categories will this project activity benefit? (Select from below)

Services to Disproportionately
X Negative Economic Impact X Public Health X Impacted Communities

[]Broadband [ Water [JSewer []Other

ORGANIZATION'’S FUNDING

9. Provide a proposed budget and timeline for this project activity, include all sources of obtained and

potential funding. Please indicate whether each funding source has been obtained, or is potential.
SEE ATTACHMENT 4

ORGANIZATION’S CERTIFICATION AND SIGNATURE

| certify that all answers on behalf of the organization identified in this Statement of Interest are true and
complete to the best of my knowledge.

Signature: Date: 1/6/2022

Print Name: TIMOTHY V. HENRY

Print Title: FIRE CHIEF




Project Title: FIRE STATION 59 ATTACHMENT 4 E‘“’E@ :

QUESTION 9: Provide a proposed budget and timeline for this project activity, include all
sources of obtained and potential funding. Please indicate whether each funding source has been
obtained, or is potential.

The District is preparing to reopen Fire Station 59 to provide full fire protection operations
and emergency medical response services beginning July 1, 2022. The projected
expenses to reopen this fire station fall in the following categories:

o Staffing: Maintaining 6 on-duty firefighters 24 hours per day, requires 3 shifts for
a total of 18 personnel.

e Fire Apparatus: Because of the medical emergency call volume in Fire Station
59s area, two (2) fire engines will be staffed to ensure national standards are met
by achieving a 4-minute response time to fires 90% of the time, as well as meeting
Cal OSHA fire suppression standards.

o Station Improvements: This station was closed in 2007 and currently going
through County Plan Review for garage improvements, so that the District’s current
fire apparatus can fit through the roll-up doors giving them access to the shelter
and security in the garage area.

The District’s budget shortfalls are due to the combination of the increase in the 3-year
service agreement for the station 59 area provided by the City of Fresno, and the re-
staffing of 4 District fire stations with district personnel taking over operations on June 30,
2019. The District used $ $1,480,139 from the District's Capital Fund for capital
improvements, capital purchases (turnout, SCBAs, staff vehicles, computers, and
communications) in the 18-19 and 19-20 fiscal years to re-staff the District's 4 stations.
Included in the re-staffing was to re-open station 58 (Shields/Grantland) that was closed
in 2007 as part of the original 30-year service agreement which ended in its twelfth (12t")
year. The District used an additional $285,669 from its Capital fund to reopen Station 58.
In fiscal years 2018-2019 and 2019-2020, the District also needed $500,372 out of the
adopted budgets for these two fiscal years and $840,371 from District Reserves to
complete the re-staffing of 4 District stations. Currently the District has encumbered
$602,410 to upgrade radio tower communication equipment and software. The total
overall costs in capital improvements, capital purchases, and communications to re-staff
the department and re-open station over the 2018-2019 and the 2019-2020 fiscal years
totaled $3,708,961.

Now with the unpredicted disruption in the City’s 30-year service agreement, the District
is now encountering the follow expenses with reopening Fire Station 59.

STAFFING

In preparation of opening Fire Station 59 within 6 months, the District has hired and
trained 12 firefighters and are scheduled to hire March 1, 2022, an additional 9 firefighters
to maintain 24-hour coverage.



Project Title: FIRE STATION 59 ATTACHMENT 4 — i@ v &

Actions taken to obtain funding elsewhere (i.e. state assistance programs or other grant
programs). The District and the City negotiated a 36-month service agreement of
$3,105,305 fee to provide coverage in the Station 59 area until 06/30/22, which has
allowed the District time to seek financial options moving forward on this project. The
decision to re-staff Station 59 fire station with District employees and apparatus was made
after the City proposed doubling the service agreement fees for an additional 36 months.
The District also submitted an application for the Fiscal Year (FY) 2019 Staffing for
Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) Grant funding opportunity which was
approved in the amount of $3,132,324.00 in Federal funding. This funding will cover the
cost of personnel on one of the two fire apparatus at Station 59 for three years. The
District applied for the Fiscal Year (FY) 2020 Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency
Response (SAFER) Grant funding opportunity and on August 31, 2021 FEMA notified the
District a second award has been approved in the amount of $2,312,174.61 in Federal
funding for an additional 9 firefighters. This federal relief will assist the District in
sustaining those positions long-term.

FIRE APPARATUS

By opening the additional fire station, the District will have to place two 20-year-old fire
apparatus back in service as first line fire engines, built in 2001.

The District will be purchasing two new engines in 2022, using Federal, State, and District
policies for procurement of fire apparatus. Once a bid is awarded the manufacturer has
365 days for delivery. The District is not seeking funding in this statement of interest for
the anticipated fire apparatus expenditure of $1,830,780.

STATION IMPROVEMENTS

The building improvements plans have been re-submitted for approval with the Fresno
County Public Works and Planning. We estimate the scheduled work to begin January
2022 with a move-in and reopening on July 1, 2022. The remodeling of Station 59 after
being closed for over 10 years is a critical infrastructure requirement to maintain fire
services levels after the 3-year service agreement with the City of Fresno expires June
30, 2022. To bring the project into 2019 Code compliance, projected estimates of the
remodeling are $1,085,668.

Under normal financial conditions, the District's annual budget contributions made to the
Capital/Equipment Fund would be adequate to keep a healthy balance to make future
planned improvements and purchases. But due to the necessary termination of the 30-
year service agreement with the City of Fresno, the costs of re-staffing and hiring
personnel, in addition to the capital improvements to the District fire stations that were
closed as part of the service agreement, the District's Capital/Equipment Fund is almost
depleted.

On June 24, 2021 the District Board reviewed an Action item — Consider and approve
based on the findings presented that an emergency designation exists and authorize Fire
Chief Henry to proceed with the upgrades needed for District station 59. (See Item #7 in
Exhibit 4-4)



Project Title: FIRE STATION 59 ATTACHMENT 4 — iﬁa
Total Project Costs: $8,360,946.00.

The following are expenditures already funded by other sources or will be the District
burden within current budget constraints:

o Staffing expense funded by FEMA at $5,444,498.
o Fire Apparatus Potential source of funding, as these expenses will be requested
in a separate project request: $1,830,780.

Because of the critical need to operate the station on or before July 1, 2022, the District
has moved forward on, and requesting funding for the following expenditures:

e Construction Costs: $977,779.00 (see Exhibit 4-2)

e Operation & Furnishings: $107,889 (see Exhibit 4-3)

Station Improvement are the only funds being requested in this Statement of Interest
Totaling $1,085,668.00



THE 2
8% THE COUNTY OF FRESNO
A o REaCclE * &40 STATEMENT OF INTEREST

ORGANIZATION INFORMATION

NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION
Organization Legal Name: DISTRICT Date: 1/6/2022

Organization Legal Classification: CALIFORNIA FIRE PROTECTION SPECIAL DISTRICT

Examples: Inc, LLC, DBA, 501c3

Address: 15850 W KEARNEY BLVD. Unit:
Street Address
KERMAN, CA. 93630
City and State Zip

Authorized Representative:  TIMOTHY HENRY

First and Last Name

Title: FIRE CHIEF Phone: (s59) 785.7057 Email:  TIM.HENRY@NORTHCENTRALFIRE.ORG

PLEASE READ EACH QUESTION CAREFULLY, AND ANSWER WITH AS MUCH DETAIL AS POSSIBLE

ORGANIZATION’S PROJECT INFORMATION

1. Project Title: PURCHASE OF FIRE APPARATUS

2. Describe whether, and if so, how this project activity will promote strong, equitable growth, including
racial equity, among groups and communities in Fresno County: SEE ATTACHMENT 1

3. Describe whether, and if so, how this project activity will positively impact disadvantaged or
underserved communities within Fresno County: SEE ATTACHMENT 2

Has this project activity received funding through the COVID-19 Relief Fund (CRF)? ES %)



5. Isyour organization interested in seeking ARPA funding for a project activity that is YES NO
eligible for funding by the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF)? O D
6. Is your organization interested in seeking ARPA funding for a project activity that is YES NO
eligible for funding by the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF)? 0 X
7. Does your organization reside in or serve a Qualified Census Tract? (A Qualified Census
Tract (QCT) is any census tract {or equivalent geographic area defined by the Census Bureau) in which at YES NO
least 50% of households have an income less than 60% of the Area Median Gross Income (AMGI). HUD has E] O

defined 60% of AMG! as 120% of HUD's Very Low-Income Limits (VLILs), which are based on 50% of area
median family income, adjusted for high cost and low-income areas.)

If yes, please explain: SEE ATTACHMENT 3

8. Which category or categories will this project activity benefit? (Select from below)

Services to Disproportionately
X Negative Economic Impact X Public Health X Impacted Communities

(] Broadband [ ] Water []Sewer [JOther  Cickor tap here to enter text

ORGANIZATION’S FUNDING

9. Provide a proposed budget and timeline for this project activity, include all sources of obtained and

potential funding. Please indicate whether each funding source has been obtained, or is potential.
SEE ATTACHMENT 4

ORGANIZATION’S CERTIFICATION AND SIGNATURE

I certify that all answers on behalf of the organization identified in this Statement of Interest are true and
complete to the best of my knowledge.

T \

Signature: =~ G- Date: 1/6/2022

Print Name: T{MOTHYW

Print Title: FIRE CHIéF/




Project Title: PURCHASE OF FIRE APPARATUS ATTACHMENT 4 sssssss 30 st ‘

QUESTION 9: Provide a proposed budget and timeline for this project activity, include all
sources of obtained and potential funding. Please indicate whether each funding source has been
obtained, or is potential.

The District is preparing to reopen Fire Station 59 to provide full fire protection operations
and emergency medical response services beginning July 1, 2022. The projected
expenses to reopen this fire station fall in the following categories:

¢ Staffing: Maintaining 6 on-duty firefighters 24 hours per day, requires 3 shifts for
a total of 18 personnel.

o Station Improvements: This station was closed in 2007 and currently going
through County Plan Review for garage improvements, so that the District’s current
fire apparatus can fit through the roll-up doors giving them access to the shelter
and security in the garage area.

e Fire Apparatus: Because of the medical emergency call volume in Fire Station
59s area, two (2) fire engines will be staffed to ensure national standards are met
by achieving a 4-minute response time to fires 90% of the time, as well as meeting
Cal OSHA fire suppression standards.

The District's budget shortfalls are due to the combination of the increase in the 3-year
service agreement for the station 59 area provided by the City of Fresno, and the re-
staffing of 4 District fire stations with district personnel taking over operations on June 30,
2019. The District used $ $1,480,139 from the District's Capital Fund for capital
improvements, capital purchases (turnout, SCBAs, staff vehicles, computers, and
communications) in the 18-19 and 19-20 fiscal years to re-staff the District's 4 stations.
Included in the re-staffing was to re-open station 58 (Shields/Grantland) that was closed
in 2007 as part of the original 30-year service agreement which ended in its twelfth (12t")
year. The District used an additional $285,669 from its Capital fund to reopen Station 58.
In fiscal years 2018-2019 and 2019-2020, the District also needed $500,372 out of the
adopted budgets for these two fiscal years and $840,371 from District Reserves to
complete the re-staffing of 4 District stations. Currently the District has encumbered
$602,410 to upgrade radio tower communication equipment and software. The total
overall costs in capital improvements, capital purchases, and communications to re-staff
the department and re-open station over the 2018-2019 and the 2019-2020 fiscal years
totaled $3,708,961.

Now with the unpredicted disruption in the City’s 30-year service agreement, the District
is now encountering the follow expenses with reopening Fire Station 59 and adding and
staffing two (2) fire engines.

STAFFING

In preparation of opening Fire Station 59 within 6 months, the District has hired and
trained 12 firefighters and are scheduled to hire March 1, 2022, an additional 9 firefighters
to maintain 24-hour coverage.



Project Title: PURCHASE OF FIRE APPARATUS ATTACHMENT 4 s 0, -y

Actions taken to obtain funding elsewhere (i.e. state assistance programs or other grant
programs). The District and the City negotiated a 36-month service agreement of
$3,105,305 fee to provide coverage in the Station 59 area until 06/30/22, which has
allowed the District time to seek financial options moving forward on this project. The
decision to re-staff Station 59 fire station with District employees and apparatus was made
after the City proposed doubling the service agreement fees for an additional 36 months.
The District also submitted an application for the Fiscal Year (FY) 2019 Staffing for
Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) Grant funding opportunity which was
approved in the amount of $3,132,324.00 in Federal funding. This funding will cover the
cost of personnel on one of the two fire apparatus at Station 59 for three years. The
District applied for the Fiscal Year (FY) 2020 Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency
Response (SAFER) Grant funding opportunity and on August 31, 2021 FEMA notified the
District a second award has been approved in the amount of $2,312,174.61 in Federal
funding for an additional 9 firefighters. This federal relief will assist the District in
sustaining those positions long-term.

STATION IMPROVEMENTS

The building improvements plans have been re-submitted for approval with the Fresno
County Public Works and Planning. We estimate the scheduled work to begin January
2022 with a move-in and reopening on July 1, 2022. The construction upgrades of Station
59 after being closed for over 10 years has become a critical infrastructure requirement
to maintain fire services levels after the current service agreement with the City of Fresno
expires June 30, 2022. To bring the project into 2019 Code compliance, is estimates at
$1,085,668.

FIRE APPARATUS

By opening the additional fire station, the District will have to place two 20-year-old fire
apparatus back in service as first line fire engines, buiit in 2001.

The District will be purchasing two new engines in 2022, using Federal, State, and District
policies for procurement of fire apparatus. Once a bid is awarded the manufacturer has
365 days for delivery. The District will be submitting a statement of interest with the
County of Fresno, ARPA 2021 funding for this $1,830,780 expenditure. See Exhibit 4-1
for estimated cost per fire engine.

Total Project Costs: $8,360,946

o Staffing expense funded by FEMA at $5,444,498
o Station Improvement expenses will be requested in a separate project request
at 1,085,668

Because of the critical need to operate the station on or before July 1, 2022, the District
has moved forward on, and requesting funding for the following expenditures:

o Fire Apparatus are the only funds being requested in this Statement of Interest
Totaling $1,830,780.

Total Project Funding Requested: $1,830,780



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian » Michael Golden
Michael Foglio * Rusty Nonini « Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

15850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 275-5531 « FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief

DATE: January 27, 2022

SUBJECT: Station 59 Update

The plans for District station 59’s renovations were approved and demolition started
January 17th and the expansion of the apparatus parking bays are expected to be
completed by June 2022.

Attached are a few pictures of the first three days of the demoilition.

Recommended Action: Informational.

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”




NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian « Michael Golden
Michael Foglio *« Rusty Nonini * Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

156850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 275-5531 » FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief

DATE: January 27, 2022

SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Awarded

A few weeks ago, the District received an email from the County of Fresno’s Community
Development Division that the District's application was approved.

In December, the District Board approved the agreement with the County of Fresno to
receive the CDBG grant funding to purchase a Type lll Fire Engine. District staff received
notice from the Community Development Department that on January 18, 2022, the
County Board of Supervisors approved the agreement.

The estimated cost of the Type il Fire Engine submitted in the application is $483,140.
The amount of CDBG grant funds awarded for this project is one half of this estimated
cost which comes to $241,570.

The Type lll engine has been ordered and is estimated to be completed in January 2023.

Recommended Action: Informational.

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



Kenneth J Price
Bq ker Attorney at Law
MCI nOCk kprice@bakermanock.com
Jensen Fig Garden Financial Center

5260 N. Palm Avenue * Suite 201
Fresno, CA 93704

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

559 432-5400 OFFICE
559 432-5620  Fax

www.bakermanock.com

MEMORANDUM

TO: Public Agency Clients
FROM: Kenneth J. Price
Lauren D. Layne

Jessica S. Johnson
BAKER MANOCK & JENSEN, PC

DATE: December 29, 2021

RE: Public Agency Updates for 2022

PUBLIC AGENCY NOTIFICATION

The purpose of this memorandum is to inform our public agency clients of new laws and
changes in the existing laws which may affect them in 2022.

DISCUSSION

A, Extension of State of Emergency/AB 361 Brown Act Teleconferencing
Requirements

During the height of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 and 2021, Governor Newsom’s
Executive Order No. N-29-20 allowed legislative bodies to participate in a public meeting via
teleconference (phone or video) under the Ralph M. Brown Act (“Brown Act”). This order was
set to expire as of September 30, 2021.

On September 15, 2021 Assembly Bill (“AB”) 361 was signed into law. AB 361 allows
local agencies to continue to use COVID-19-era teleconferencing notice and meeting procedures
through December 31, 2023, as long as one of the following specific types of emergency exists:

A.  The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and

state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social
distancing.

2971419v1 / 51202.0004



Public Agency Clients
December 29, 2021
Page 3

e The value of the payment meets or exceeds the reporting threshold of $5,000.2

The official must report the behested payment within 30 days of the date a single source
makes a behested payment or payments that aggregate or exceed $5,000 in a calendar year. The
official must report the names and addresses of the parties involved (payor and payee), the
date(s) of the payment(s) and a brief description of the goods or services provided or purchased
and a description of the specific purpose or event for which the payments were made. This
means that the elected official must promptly communicate and work with the organization
receiving the payment/donation after participating in the fundraising event to determine if and
when reporting is required.

A payment/donation that is principally for personal purposes or a payment that is related
to an official’s candidacy for elective office is generally not a reportable behested payment under
FPPC Regulations Sections 842204.5(c) and 84224,

2. 2021 Amendments

On October 21, 2021, the FPPC adopted new regulations promoting increased
transparency for behested payments. Effective December 22, 2021, the behested payment report
must also include?:

e A brief description of any relationship between the nonprofit payee and the
official, or a member of his or her immediate family, or member of their
campaign or officeholder staff; and

e A brief description of any proceeding* before the official’s agency at the time of a
reported payment or within the 12 months prior to the reported payment in which
the payor is the named party or subject of the decision.

Such relationships are not forbidden by law and do not generally constitute a conflict of
interest, however, FPPC staff and the Commission considered this information that the public
would be interested in knowing.

If the official is having difficulty gathering information from the payee, there is now a
“safe harbor” provision, allowing the official to estimate the behested payment amount and date
in good faith if they have made reasonable efforts to obtain the information (e.g., a written

2 See League of California Cities, FPPC makes changes to fundraising-related payment reporting (Dec.
15, 2021) available at https://www.calcities.org/detail-pages/news/2021/12/15/fppc-makes-changes-to-
fundraising-related-payment-

reporting?utm_source=newsletter&utm medium=email&utm campaign=CCA 121521.

32 Cal. Code Regs. § 18424,

4 A “proceeding” includes decisions on a contract, license, permit, or other entitlement and matters of
non-general legislation. A “proceeding” does not include decisions on general legislation.

2971419v1 / 51202.0004



Public Agency Clients
December 29, 2021
Page 5

(b) The lead agency must submit, in an electronic form, all proposed CEQA
documents, including draft EIRs, proposed negative declarations, proposed mitigated negative
declarations, and notices of completion to the State Clearinghouse via the CEQA Submit
program. !0

(©) The lead agency must also post all draft and final EIRs, negative
declarations, or mitigated negative declarations on its website, if it has one.!!

2. Public Review Periods

(a) When a state agency is the lead agency, a responsible agency, or a trustee
agency, or otherwise has jurisdiction over a proposed project, the draft EIR must be submitted
and posted on CEQA Submit for a 45-day review period.

(b) When a state agency is the lead agency, a responsible agency, or a trustee
agency, or otherwise has jurisdiction over a proposed project, the proposed negative declaration
or proposed mitigated negative declaration must be submitted and posted on CEQA Submit for a
30-day review period.'?

3. Public Notice

(a) A lead agency must give public notice prior to a meeting at which it is
considering adoption of an EIR, a Master EIR, or a negative declaration by the usual measures
(mail to interested parties, and publication, posting, or mailing) and by posting it on the lead
agency’s website.!* (Note: a website appears to be a requirement under this statute).

(b) Local agency NOPs, notices of scoping meetings, notices of availability
for review, notices of completion, and notices of determination (“NODs”) must also be posted on
the agency’s website, if it has one.'

(c) Local lead agency NODs will be required to be filed electronically with
the county clerk if that option is offered by the county clerk, and county clerks will now have the
option of posting the NODs on their internet websites (in addition to the existing in-office
posting option).'?

10 Pub. Res. Code §§ 21082.1(c)(4), 21161.

11 Pub. Res. Code § 21082.1(d).

12 Pub. Res. Code § 21091.

'3 Pub. Res. Code § 21092(b)(3).

'4 Pub. Res. Code §§ 21092.2, 21152. All public agencies are required to have websites, unless certain
exceptions are met. If the public agency does not have a website, it must annually adopt a resolution with
required findings of hardship.

'3 Pub. Res. Code §§ 21152(c), (d).

2971419vi / 51202.0004



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian « Michael Golden
Michael Foglio * Rusty Nonini * Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

15850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 275-5531 « FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief

DATE: January 27, 2022

SUBJECT: 2021 Strike Team Reimbursements

A few months ago, the District Board reviewed a list of the Strike Team incidents the
District provided resources to during the fire season throughout the State. The District
has started receiving some of the reimbursements from the State on some of the
incidents. Below is a chart showing the total reimbursable items submitted as well as a
column showing the reimbursements received to date.

District Rig Admin Total to be Total
Incident Rig OT Reimb. Reimb. Reimb. Reimb. Reimbursed
Manzanita | Patrol-55 8,880.89 4,890.00 1,377.09 15,147.98 | $15,147.98
Blue Patrol-55 10,035,48 7,680.00 2,841.45 20,556.93 20,556.93
Dixie Patrol-55 02,426,42 | 46,860.00 | 13,928.64 | 153,215.06 153,215.06
Monument E-5603 59,661.48 0.00 6,477.45 66,138.93 66,138.93
Antelope BC-255 25,138.13 3,584.00 2,872.21 31,594.34 31,594.34
French BC-255 9,921.18 1,344.00 1,126.52 12,391.70 0.00
Caldor E-5603 57,566.16 0.00 5,756.62 63,322.78 63,322.78
Windy Patrol-55 55,322.28 | 26,850.00 8,217.23 90,389.51 0.00
Totals | $318,952.02 | $91,208.00 | $42,597.21 | $452,757.23 | $349,976.02

To date the District has received reimbursement from the State for six of the incidents we
provided resources. The total in reimbursements for all six incidents is $349,976.02 with
$102,781.21 yet to be reimbursed.

All invoices have been received from Cal OES and were verified by District staff and
submitted for reimbursement. The District is anticipating to receive the remaining
reimbursements in the next couple of months.

Recommended Action: Informational

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”




NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian ¢« Michael Golden
Michael Foglio * Rusty Nonini « Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

15850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 275-5531 » FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief

DATE: January 27, 2022

SUBJECT: 2021 SAFER Grant Application

Applications for the 2021 Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER)
grants are currently open. The District is finalizing an application for nine (9) firefighter
positions. There is no district match in the SAFER grant program, the grant will cover
salary and benefits for nine (9) firefighter positions for three years.

If awarded the grant funds will assist the District with staffing for station 54.

Recommended Action: Informational

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian » Michael Golden
Michael Foglio « Rusty Nonini « Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

15850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 275-5531 « FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief

DATE: January 27, 2022

SUBJECT: 2021 AFG Grant Application

On December 14, 2021, the District applied for an Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG)
for the purchase of a new Type | Fire Engine. The objective AFG Grant program is to
provide funding directly to fire departments and nonaffiliated EMS organizations or a State
Fire Training Academy for the purpose of protecting the health and safety of the public
and first responder personnel against fire and fire-related hazards.

This year, the District submitted the application for a new Type | Fie Engine to replace
aging District engines that are 19-21 years old. The estimated total cost of a new fire
engine is $915,390. The District would have a ten percent match on this grant so if
awarded, the District's portion would be $91,539. The AFG grant program will start
announcing awards in April of 2022.

Recommended Action: Informational

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian * Michael Golden
Michael Foglio * Rusty Nonini « Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

15850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 275-5531 « FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief

DATE: January 27, 2022

SUBJECT: KUSD Workforce Grant Opportunity

North Central Fire has partnered with Fresno County Office of Education, Fresno City
College, and Kerman Unified School District to start a Fire ROP/CTE program in Kerman!
This program will offer students a pathway to public safety, teaching students the
principles and values of being a public servant, skills needed to mitigate various types of
emergencies and disasters, how to perform in high stress environments, and prepare
them for the fire academy.

As the host fire department, we are proud to work with such a collaborative partner in
Kerman Unified School District and we look forward to establishing a top tier program with
the Fresno County office of education to better support our community and provide
pathways for students to follow their dreams.

Our partners have invited the Fire District to apply for a “Workforce” grant through KUSD.
The grant has a 2 to 1 match to the District, with a maximum of one million dollars of grant
funding. These funds must be expended over a 30-month period, and are available for
projects that directly impact students that are involved in a fire ROP work pathway.

Staff would like to consider moving forward with the purchase of property south of
Kerman, in which future planning for a Training Tower & Classrooms, District Emergency

Operation Center (EOC), Communication Tower, and fire station. Development of these
projects can be done in phases, based on capital funds and other funding sources.

Recommended Action: Informational.

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



; \\,T ;.‘I..-I Z/‘__ -

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SUMMARY REPORT

DATE: January 25, 2022

TO: Fig Garden Board of Directors
North Central Board of Directors

FROM: Timothy V. Henry, Fire Chief — £

SUBJECT:  Evaluation of Automatic/Mutual Aid Agreement

The North Central Fire Protection District (NCF) Board, currently provides fire protection
and emergency services through a service agreement with the City of Fresno. This three
(3) year agreement commenced on July 1, 2019 and ends June 30, 2022.

At the NCF Board meeting on June 24, 2021, after a service level review and fiscal
sustainability projection was presented to the Board, a decision was made to allow the
current service agreement with the City of Fresno to expire on June 30, 2022. The Board
also gave direction to the Fire Chief to prepare Fire Station 59 to be placed back in service
to provide fire/EMS response to the Bullard/Fig Garden communities. On July 1, 2022,
the District’s fire station located at 1709 W. Bullard Ave. will be staffed with two NCF fire
engines, and a minimum of six (6) firefighters, providing Fire/EMS services in the 5.2
square miles of unincorporated County islands, from the San Joaquin River on the north,
Sierra Sky Park Airport on the west, and the neighborhoods surrounding the Fig Garden
Fire Protection District (FGF) on the south end of the NCF District (Exhibit B).

The NCF Board of Directors Operations Ad Hoc committee consisting of Kenneth
Abrahamian, Board Chair and Rusty Nonini, Board Vice Chair, is seeking to find a
mutually beneficial agreement serving both our communities after reopening the Bullard
and West fire station. Because the Fig Garden Fire Protection District (FGF) is not a
signer to the Fresno County Operations Area Mutual-Aid agreement, the NCF District
desires to execute an automatic and mutual aid agreement with FGF that is materially
similar to other such agreements entered into between NCF and other fire protection
districts or agencies.

The FGF District is approximately one-half square mile located within the unincorporated
islands (6 square miles), within the sphere of influence of the City of Fresno. Fig Garden
Fire Protection District is bordered by the North Central Fire Protection District on all four
sides.

The 1,771 residents within the FGF District are also within the Fig Garden Home Owners
Association (HOA). There are 3,733 North Central Fire District residents, also within the

Page 1 of §



same HOA. The HOA includes all residents in the unincorporated islands south of Shaw
Ave.

Taking into consideration that the Fig Garden fire engine was out of service and
unavailable for emergency response for more than 647 hours during the 2021 calendar
year, the North Central Fire District Board Ad Hoc Committee would encourage the Fig
Garden Fire District Board to review the attached draft automatic and mutual aid
agreement, along with the proposed response area maps (Appendix A & B). Also
attached are supporting documentation suggesting an agreement between our agencies
would be mutually beneficial.

The following charts and graphs are Fig Garden’s fire engine unavailable times. Fig
Garden’ fire engine is unavailable when committed to emergency incidents, when out of
district and not available for training, vehicle maintenance, administrative assignment,
staffing shortage, etc.

2020
E20 incident Commitment by Agency 2020
Total Call Volume 1649
FFD 1274
NC 281
FIG 92
CLOVIS 2
2020 Incident Commitment time by Percent
0,
0% 6%
W FIG
B NC
I FFD
B Clovis
E20 Incident Commitment Time by Hours 2020
Total Hour Volume 439.5
FFD 351
NC 67
FIG 19.5
CLOVIS 2

2021 (308 - 18.5% Increase)

Page 2 of 6




E20 Incident Commitment by Agency 2021
Total Call Volume 1957
FFD 1593
NC 265
FIG 91
CLOVIS 7
2021 Incident Commitment time by Percent
0% 59
0
M FIG
B NC
IFFD
M Clovis
E20 Incident Commitment Time by Hours 2021
Total Hour Volume 490.7
FFD 400
NC 58
FIG 254
CLOVIS 7

Engine 20 — Unavailable for District Coverage:

E20 Out of Service by Reason - 2021 Total Hours
Total Unavailable for Response Time 157
Training 88
Vehicle Repair/Maintenance 34
Administrative 13
Staffing 9
Other 13

Page 3 of 5




NORTH CENTRAL FIRE DISTRICT E20 DATA 2020-2021

ENGINE 20 - UNAVAILABLE FOR DISTRICT COVERAGE TIMES
Incident Response by Agency 2020 2021 Change +/-
FFD 1274 1593 UP 25%
NC 281 265 DOWN 5.6%
FIG 92 91 No Change |
CLOVIS 2 7 UP 250%
Total Incident Responses 1649 1957 UP 18.6%
Incident Commitment Time 2020 2021 Change
FFD 351 400 UP 14%
NC 67 58 DOWN 13%
FIG 19.5 254 UP 30%
CLOVIS 2 7 N/A
Total Hour Committed 439.5 490.7 UP 11.6%
Percent of Total Calls by Agency 2020 2021 Change
FFD 77% 81% UP 4%
NC 17% 14% DOWN 3%
FIG 6% 5% DOWN 1%
CLOVIS 0% 0% N/A
Hours Out of Service by Reason - 2021 2021
Training: 88
Vehicle Repair/Maintenance: 34
Administrative: 13
Insufficient Staffing: 9
Other: 13
Total Unavailable for Response Hours: 157

Total Hours Unavailable for District Coverage in 2021: 647.7

Automatic Aid Medical Service Area (Exhibit A)

The Medical Service Area encompasses all parcels within the Fig Garden HOA residing
in both fire districts. Which includes the following demographics:

Data retrieved from the 2020 US Census provides the following demographics for both
fire districts:

Fig Garden Total Residents: 1,771
Population Living in households having an income less than:

¢ $0to $25,000 =58
¢ $25,000 to $50,000 =103
e $50,000 to $75,000 = 138

Total $0 to $75,000 = 299 or 16.75% of the FGF District's population.

Hispanic: 376; White: 1213; Black: 33; Native American: 23; Asian: 92

Page 4 of 5



North Central Total Residents: 3,733
Population Living in households having an income less than:

e $0 to $25,000 =184
e $25,000 to $50,000 =230
e $50,000 to $75,000 =297

Total $0 to $75,000 = 711 or 18.75% of the NCF District's population.

Hispanic: 1475; White: 1752; Black: 132; Native American: 57: Asian: 230

Accumulative Totals for Exhibit A (Fig Garden HOA) 5,504 Residents
Population Living in households having an income less than:

e $0 to $25,000 =322

e $25,000 to $50,000 = 333

» $50,000 to $75,000 =435

Total $0 to $75,000 = 1,090 or 18.25% of the HOA population.

Hispanic: 1,851; White: 2,965; Black: 165; Native American: 80: Asian: 322

Automatic Aid Fire Protection Service Area (Exhibit B)

The Fire Protection Service Area includes all of the unincorporated islands within both
Districts.

2020 North Central Fire Responses: 3
* Requiring 3 or more fire apparatus: 2

2020 Fig Garden Fire Responses: 1
¢ Requiring 3 or more fire apparatus:1

2021 North Central Fire Responses: 4
* Requiring 3 or more fire apparatus: 3

2021 Fig Garden Fire Responses: 1
e Requiring 3 or more fire apparatus: 1

As the two districts move forward, it is our desire to have a strong partnership serving
our community.

Page 5 of 5



s < = * E3 z 3 3 = z 3
= = z o siapo ~ " 3
@ VASN Ne3INg SNSUID SN Safte c M o ory Riopas 3 QAVRELCPId=T
‘wawabeuey puet Jo NEamng - WAILE dNTVEIONI Ydeanajes ‘uiwies ‘¥aH ‘153 'dmd 1dag Aunod ousasy 51010qIIu0) sdey Ayunwiuo) us3 W._b_xhw_a ZQ.—.UEOE 3Hi4
3 ] > = @ > 2 .v. SAY puelies ¥ Bry DUBIRD T i : =
Pz 3 . [T £ . NaQEVD 914
UEE = 2] 12 e ﬂ"ﬂl-.“rp / 3
= 5 -
: = : % _ ®
o z 3 | e el
Iry € 4y eroue R §
3 c4ea 3 Cip 5° TVHINID HLNON 7808
Z Rea Buislfta—lE M
4 = < gl
= hBp MediBeg 3 B 7 Keay meulis i Lew, menbeg
3 g Kean 2810 = -
3 >
o > T ”__I_IﬂmLIII_. : S@oieq uapen Biy [ | 4
epg varsins tr — S 1 = | LTI L1
93 A NS 4 ; = S[a01ed 003 ~ m A
EEEEEERARES di= Meys JO LANos adoN ||
i in) ===
ian
I L
L
oAy uelu i\@ - — ony ueiusy @
) _Lll - L AW IHIMG M
I ; “WW
. Hllis=]s: iE e
2 : _ i 1 1T o o i
A" : 5 eIl 1o t - ——r NAY IEAS A o GAFHIME
= z (R0 L _uLI = = i T EES Sl 1 | o %, :
8 E 11l = = N
ER o B b e x,
E [EERARANN] ﬁ| _ : =t == “op L
- : Z & CELEEHET] AL e I o A v °x,
VRURHTHE 3 E = = = FAY DUEHOH M
% = 1 =il
- ] ! ! ] = ] =
2z = m = vl_ — _._I I p EV ‘ i1y
E @
aeEuRiSul-R T s =g - T E
g o i 2 8 r =z
= x -
MoK 3 4 o = ik z
+ 3 15 -
3 ! 1 = L 3 Wu BingsA N
» . - Tonw Bangsfiieo am <
s ] = E :
e o — .Im > K 2AY.021d A ]
@ — 3 e &
B = == )
= == @ AN OUES M
w == ES z
= == > = o
== ¢ : Z
== g Yy
= == Z | o
kS TS aag il VIUEE o W <
2 i 28 e
H U - DAY SO A >
2 = EfE= s
v B e AAW RO B M
2
AY BIDNW TS M
— [ = S———. — e e ==
s - = =5 DAY MEUS N =
=~ LI
| ]
BN F . %ﬂ 1
| Y NQIUX -
=1 i




3= i : =% z L
WIS MEANG 15033 SN SN 'vd3 Wawabeueyy puen 4o nedng SO5N (qu:cr d LNININONI 'ydeiDajes uiuLes Suai s 100 AUN0Y ousay = = d.ae
. i vui | Ehllist = bl k- 2, N S1MM1SI0 NOILIZLO0N 3! ras
[ = _v_. T ] , _ T, | . SLOLsIg d M 4&
7 £t : - 9SUOASDY JUu=pIdUT+e m_m_ B NaovD ol
= - - & - - =
= 3 = B 2 3 3 = L = a 3
g = w = 5 7 H X oy, =N 2
B 5 @ g " - S
= sny utiyey 3 2 aAyuRiusy 3 m » Feon f z M = |=1easnin fﬂﬂﬁ% TVEINID HINON @fw mﬂ_ﬂ.%.
2 i 8§ - :¢g “ R =
5 P : = . ) z >
= = & e . ) 2
: srw a0y 3 > 3 ._l s i P H % &
2 _._ W ; 4 3 ..t//f./ “
> _ g 3 5 £
.” | m L rw uapies) By _ 5|
_ W w o .ww m uonos suonels onaW @
[ > & awe: 03 Gd-ON [ ]
4 1
3 90y MPYS 3 L i . y
i MiEamorvinets)d 8AY MBUS M Ao _amz.mm_:
1\/1{_]1 ,I.._ /V
-3 a 3 IS .
MIdieva 3 FAY MOISIPY 3 _ | — . j.ld _ el o4 G s .‘_.r. 2 i
= = e = f
9 z it | 2 Mo = %
Ml“ * £ ﬁ \‘m\ i3 LTS T A“ & o > Qée& =
2 = 5 | = = = % 2,
82y paving 3BAY prejang 3 _— ”_ 4 HLH ! _.Luﬂ- [ 1~} = = z * q
2 _Ww = __v | e _ =N - 3 ] H ‘o, uapiebiy ;
T - o o A : % :
2 = - 3 5 * 3 . ,n i | == - P
: e 2 | ;
3 i E 3 =R R = o X 8]
v =1 3 E e 5 a >
= -3 b _ - - :
: RS - Ly
oHI SR MOPIIRIET = R = == A UBRUATH - JESTE] = NS T —— 2T ——
: 74 oz é = | Al E Ay gieis _
- R | eepeuig . -
¥ ety tl S50,
" 3 -
- by Rp— z
- Vl\,\ o = ™ 5
f : \ = 3 ;
[+ ] r : :
3 - =iBRReN 3 s i / Ay BOAN M >
= ~ = b3 N ~———
3 A% » _ ,_
B E r/ 7 Az |
> e > | 2 0
g : oeoa ! " ./ \
3 = : W £ W : %)
guqiixg | ,
. - - i) : \\

FAY D

N

oy Ad




FIG GARDEN FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT AND
NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
AGREEMENT FOR AUTOMATIC AID
FIRE SUPPRESSION AND EMERGENCY SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT FOR AUTOMATIC AID FIRE SUPPRESSION AND EMERGENCY
SERVICES (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into on the 1st day of July, 2022, by and
between the FIG GARDEN FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of
California, hereinafter called “Fig Garden” and NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of California, hereinafter called “North Central.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the parties have the common power to provide fire protection services and
desire to jointly exercise said power pursuant to the authority granted under Sections 6502 and
55632 of the California Government Code and Section 25400 et eq., of the California Health and
Safety Code; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to maximize the delivery of fire suppression and emergency
services by responding the closest unit necessary to protect life and property;

WHEREAS, an agreement to provide automatic aid is beneficial to both parties; and

WHEREAS, Fig Garden does not participate in the California Disaster and Civil Defense
Master Mutual Aid Agreement with the State of California pursuant to the California Emergency
Services Act for purposes of requesting mutual aid in connection with any incident which cannot
be handled adequately by the party’s respective fire districts.

WHEREAS, Fig Garden does not participate in the Fresno County Operational Area
Mutual Aid Agreement with the other fire agencies within Fresno County for purposes of
requesting mutual aid in connection with any incident which cannot be handled adequately by the
party’s respective fire department.

WHEREAS, this Agreement addresses circumstances in which either North Central or Fig
Garden request automatic aid and/or mutual aid in connection with any incident.

EEME

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS.

Unless the particular provision or context otherwise requires, the definitions contained in this
section shall govern the construction, meaning, and application of words used in this Agreement.

a) "Automatic Aid" shall mean the immediate dispatch of a fire unit within the
jurisdiction of the requesting party under pre-determined terms and
conditions, using (NFPA) 1221 as a guideline.

b) “Automatic Aid Medical Service Area” shall mean the area within the Fig
Garden unincorporated boundaries and the area within the North Central

2986920v1 / 18148.0004 1



ERVICES.

Purpose: By entering into this Agreement, the parties desire to enhance their abilities to
provide fire suppression and emergency services by sharing resources when and where
appropriate for emergency incident mitigation. To effectuate this purpose, the parties
agree that their respective agencies will respond with their nearest available Fire Unit(s)
within the attached defined Automatic Aid Emergency Medical Service Area (Exhibit “A”)
and Automatic Aid Fire Protection Service Area (Exhibit “B”). Neither agency is required
to respond with particular identified units, however, the nearest available Fire Unit
response concept shall be utilized when appropriate as it represents the foundation and
rationale for this Agreement.

a) Service Details Determined by Fire Chiefs. The specific details of providing
the services under the terms as specified in this Agreement shall be
determined by the respective Fire Chiefs of the parties. It is understood
that all plans pertaining to the Fire Protection Services shall adhere as
closely as practical to the “Nearest Available Fire Unit” concept which forms
the basis for this Agreement.

b) North Central Obligations to Fig Garden. North Central agrees to provide
the following to the Fig Garden:

(1) Upon request by Fig Garden, to respond with no less than one Fire
Unit within the “Automatic Aid Medical Service Area” and the
“Automatic Aid Fire Protection Service Area” to complete alarm
assignments as defined by the requesting party’s response matrix.
This is a general agreement of intent and does not obligate North
Central to respond if its resources are otherwise unavailable.

(2) Upon request by Fig Garden, to respond with one Fire Unit as
Automatic Aid within the Automatic Aid Service Areas, this mutually
provided service is at no financial cost to either agency.

(3) Upon request by Fig Garden, North Central will provide one water
tender in addition to any previously assigned automatic aid resources.

(4) Upon request by Fig Garden, North Central will provide one Fire Unit
with a minimum of 2 career staff to cover the area within Fig Garden
unincorporated boundaries, in support of draw down caused by
emergency activity. This is a general agreement of intent and does
not obligate North Central if its resources are unavailable.

(5) Any requests for assistance outside of the areas established in
Exhibit A and Exhibit B, or not identified herein shall be considered a
Mutual Aid request as identified in the recitals and would be subject
to authorization by the responding party for each request based on
availability rather than the nearest available concept.

c) Fig Garden Obligations to North Central. Fig Garden agrees to provide the
following to the North Central:

(1) Upon request by North Central, to respond with no less than one Fire

2986920v1 / 18148.0004 3



d) Incident Commander. If an IC requires additional resources to augment the
emergency response, they shall order them through the jurisdictional
agency dispatch center of the agency having jurisdictional responsibility.
There will always be one ordering point for any incident, and this will be
determined by the agency which has jurisdictional authority for the incident.

e) Early Release of Resources. Both parties agree to release the other
agency'’s resources as quickly as operationally feasible to limit commitment
times.

f) Incident Command System. The incident Command System (ICS) shall be

used on every incident,

g) Availability of Equipment. Neither party to this Agreement is obligated to
furnish any services to the requesting party if, in the sole discretion of the
Fire Chief or their designee, the apparatus, equipment, personnel, or any
combination thereof, is not available.

h) Mutual Training. The parties shall conduct mutual trainings to ensure
employees are familiar with protocols and equipment utilized by the other
and are aligned with operational area policies.

i) Common Radio Communications. The parties shall work cooperatively to
develop and maintain common radio communications protocols to assure
adequate communications exist while jointly responding to emergency
incidents. In addition, work cooperatively and actively to deploy dispatching
methods and Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL) tracking capabilities to
improve response times, reduce unnecessary delays, and provide for
accountability. Specifically, both agencies will support the Computer Aided
Dispatch (CAD) interagency interface (CAD to CAD) system in conjunction
with live AVL data exchange to ensure the closest unit is recommended and
utilized without unnecessary delays and develop specific operating
procedures that ensure dispatching accuracy.

j) Notifications. When advised of an emergency incident within the other's
jurisdiction, each party will make immediate notification of the incident to
the jurisdictional agency.

k) Protective Equipment. Ensure that all personnel respond in and use proper
personal protective equipment (PPE) as specified by the policies of the
respective parties.

SECTION 4. PRIVILEGE MUNITIES.

The provisions of this Agreement are intended to comply with the provisions of Article 2, Chapter
2, Part 1, Division 12, of the Health and Safety Code of the State of California, and Article 2,
Chapter 4, Part 2, Division 2, Title 5, of the Government Code of the State of California, providing
for privileges and immunities from liabilities, exemption from losses, and rules applicable to
personnel furnishing fire protection outside the jurisdiction of the responding party and within the
jurisdiction of the requesting party.

SECTION 5. MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION.

2986920v1 / 18148.0004 5



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement at Fresno, California, on the
day and year first above written.

FIG GARDEN FIRE NORTH CENTRAL FIRE
PROTECTION PROTECTION
DISTRICT, DISTRICT,
By: By:
Lewis Lenny Date Ken Abrahamian Date
Chairman, Board of Directors Chairman, Board of Directors
APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Attorney for District Attorney for District
By: By:
Eatel c i Kenneth Price Date
Sgal Sornel Legal Council
ATTEST: ATTEST:
[PS_ERRI _D;)NIS TIMOTHY HENRY, EFO, CFO
ire Chie Fire Chief
By: By:

Attachment:  Exhibit A — Map “Automatic Aid Medical Service Area”
Exhibit B — Map “Automatic Aid Fire Protection Service Area”

2986920v1 / 18148.0004 7



— L
M.v = ‘% BAY )OUI0D T - Ay [1BUL0D M
3 = a I z
5 o9 @ > 2AY SPISIUS M aAY SPIFIUS M
= oAy spes 3 2T 33 BAY SPIBIUS M -
DATR IR TUST 9AY spisiyg 3 2 | ; > > - 5 2 z - i
§11 SN w3 AusiuoBiuE PUE) o nEaINg 'SDSN VSYN/LLEW d LNIWZEONI ‘udesnajes Juurs 343H uS3 'Sk Heis ELu0/e3 ‘Ymd Wdeq Munod ousailg & g = 5 z =z e 2-AMO m:.eM
< - 3 ) > B o =z s S 3 )
» H JB1soyIUBN H W s mL m s .w & Om —._m_.._H lojes.
= o o
o L = r-4
2 * 5 > Iz i =3 . ;  un PR
BAY BUEIE! @ a I = B )
2 z
VTNl - /, SAY E10%EQ M m any ejojeq M w>£§%%5m A m
_ . > € -udaI) 3
o M z Aem meujbeg m 3 3
\ s, e _ z 2 :
& z z o »wzf...é:u ES P P 5 s M
= = ; 3
z = - a vy XawEng-3 4 F @
2 g z = T g g o e 3 Jawvosnw  CE - ALO senuiw
il e 2 H S 3 2 z -
g = 4 o z ’ s uey)] aJow Jo.
2 oay uepysy 3 > S Ay uBjysy 3 r 2 aay Udiusy 3 @ o 2 (013 . Ul 2
> a ¢ | L = £
H : e z { Oy NE3 bemo e B smeiedde ¢ 190w
3 4 > L,
=z : = v s,
@ = e ﬂ DAY BUNTIOH 3 e = és.we § Jou pip Jeyl aly
] Sy Youoysy 3 3 = £ = ;
5 m =) > ® ﬁ.“cua:n_u:_ 3 % T X z ° w.__nﬁuq._.ﬁm = Eﬂ
> H u|= . > o z < :
@ = =
- s onv BingsAes 3 2 » . ony Bangshnno 30 = = m 3 =
5 | > > 3 N H
W L ] _ 2 : s 3 M 4 eo@cs 2 i NOILINAP
> 3AY BUY gy, | = z g Lo 5 z violg
ties 3 = F @
H - b = BAY SOWERIY M =
Hew .. | 4 oAy juounes gy 2 z :
J1e4 uopyses Al i CJ AdID
oAy meys 3 BAY MEUS I eAy meys 3 ! S o | BAY MEUS M BAY MEYS M AYMHOI
: o Vo N L
— Ve
oy M ™)t — | ik i = DAY BSOI UES M
ul Bopung 3 ¥ r ﬁ .
B i &) G &
= — — @ asy ....0..., L= .
3AY MOjsieg 3 sAy mojsieg 3 SNy - NOILNE A = T a0 E M oAy mO1SIEE M 2. i
! 1 "
1 &
z z | . iﬁfv
QN WE o 1Ay Buwmoss sy e piy BUIUMOIG M Q.\o _..wu
F a M | e Mg BANTSH AL = - .o\a ?
@ 4 K] o — e
N N L z P z -
> Er = s 2 2= z = z
n 94y piejing 3 aay piejing 3 F e | 3 == Ay puv A 3 B P N3IQuVvold &
¥ 3 Zz 5 - 5 — 2 3 = <. 3
o 3 g > SR [ .. B 51 - I %, 2
2.4 2 = : £ .3 § E ) z
o z ._n.-.ru g ] md - % 3 A | © S BAY UojB3ST M .
g 2 g @ 2 > b =
I w s fr—— - £ =
A i z i g S 5 »®
> oy Enors 3 &3 eheriT 4 ———— aAY euBIS M E) 1Q uspied
: aAy ojuap 3 e =
z m g — H
3 - ='» | z BAY OUY OlEd M
E x ORY TGGWRIy A &
° (5] - — 1
z @ = =
= e FAY UOPUIBK ax — MHYd
£ Ay UODiR
b vopuiad 3 T = 43 — AWS W¥HIAIS
z z =
» : - /
] H ] 3 N,
g g — 2
o K] g = & —— . N
¥ gonie% K > 3 . J
3IVO3NId s 3 e | e ..N/..WJ
¥ 1e1An|y 3 any [EIANIY 3 buissois SRIMIADIY M SAY IEIANIY M _ -
yied senty = \\
2 _ m,w \(« .
elep 1202 _uﬁm 0c¢0¢ S=4l) =l Duu m 0119 Ucm _u‘_mU m_m 29 |
By A > o~ s
2 T H =
2 3 .3 T~ >
A 890N 3 @Ay seeN 3 a BSAY BN M & ....:-r / __ \\ z
v 5 z e ¢




BAN -

‘._\‘ o Eiw

: ....V GJ 1 |
VOSN SN Va3 TopmaSruny pus] 1o REAING SIS VEYNALIN GERsajes Wies I ) ﬂx& Ve Aoy outgs

5
By
1,

Yammns ¥

-And g
1

&
i 1 <
L -
_ ™ 3
_ b
Lo _ _
¥,
P 3 - [sieosny
s ¥ N e
4 B
4 _
|5 . _ -
¥ 0z | :
| | J -
_ | i :
| uonounr TIoIg M.
| o I R
: | T Ry G AemuyBiy _!
_ by
el - el L
1
L n..l_ - — =
2 _ R
143 i —— /_..,.,
I | .
- s L D - b '...
65 =i | - uspueiig N
X 5 § -y | . N

= 2 I == 3

R e LT T

T # LNIWHOVLLY

L d SYylisngr”




2 = H P m 3 > 7 >
s.m wraing snEeD 51y Sty vl M = W Ay E199EL 3 sAY TiopEs @ °
T eusbumy e o resing. s VLI S ANTHON SIS WD SH 13 a8 fune ey oo sy Kiununie iy v SLOISLSIQ NOUIILONG Tl §
» SAY SN A © %
YRR g T : NIQUVO Ol i
. ) M ’ m % ; d ﬁ
.. 8 p: g e Shy mionsn ST WULNID HINON B
o
m. e B by -,
1
4 LT ts » Acay muliBeg M,
3 i |
: i .::.:T» e s | B
fonwviin g il few WNisiie 3 ° : = - : 35 1
- 8
S rausavnmaun)
_ RARAREANE | NEIALIEE
rEeH B
.. e = . eAvumEsY M —
— — v urrRE . 1 T o ol s M E
i =i
| = J.n. L I L Y Uimg < \.ta.nu. ¢ LLL =P
. [ +
..... “ay .
= = . .
File 3 - - >
i = i i | | (Y A y,
fay Dutiide 3 T = - " ~ LN}
’ sl
==y =
B = T T
. 5 \
- E ; ss/Emge I
o W .."1 ‘ M
. £ —— e z =
. ey g = Savy Singuinag g W
> ={= \ L1} - £ ~
- =2
3 =[= WSS > x el 7
# = = * L
M ﬁ ! M. oy ST W 3 -
* = H : 2
= > :
= 7 w
§ LAY Y SETEM = 3
] :
mn PAY Moy M w
: -
N T i
e : (VOH) NOILVIDOSSY




